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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China Jicheng Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | am pleased
to present our annual report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as
plastic cloth and shaft. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group’s revenue decreased to approximately RMB604 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 8.2% in comparison to
that of 2015, while profit attributable to owner of the Company
decreased to approximately RMB6 million, representing a decrease
of approximately 75.7% as compared to that of 2015. The Directors
do not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The revenue of the Group’s POE umbrellas products decreased
by approximately RMB64 million, or 16.0%, from approximately
RMB400 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately RMB336 million for the year ended 31 December
2016.

The revenue of the Group’s nylon umbrellas products increased by
approximately RMB13 million, or 6.7%, from approximately RMB188
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB201 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

The revenue of the Group’s umbrella parts products decreased by
approximately RMB2 million, or 3.4%, from approximately RMB69
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMBG67 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Our principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen our position
as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan market and
on our own branded umbrella products in the People’s Republic
of China (“PRC”) market, and increase our market share in existing
markets such as Hong Kong, Cambodia and South Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank all the
colleagues for their diligence, dedication, loyalty and integrity. | would
also like to thank all the shareholders, customers, bankers and other
business associates for their trust and support.

Huang Weniji
Chairman

Fujian Province, the PRC, 29 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale of
POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts such as plastic
cloth and shaft. The Group manufactures products at the production
site located in Dongshi Town and Yonghe Town of Jinjiang City in
Fujian Province of the PRC. During the year ended 31 December
2016, the Group disposed of the entire equity interest in L5
BEEEBR AR (Shandong Hengmao Umbrella Company
Limited) (“Shandong Hengmao”) to an independent third party (the
“Purchaser”).

The Group principally sell POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts on export basis to the Group’s overseas customers
which accounted for approximately 70.1% of the Group’s total
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Group exported
its POE umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and umbrella parts to markets
such as Japan, Hong Kong, South Korea, Taiwan, Spain and
Cambodia. The Group’s overseas customers would usually provide
the Group with their design and specification. The Group’s sales
personnel would closely communicate with the Group’s customers.
Depending on the specific needs of these overseas customers, the
Group’s sales personnel would put forward the Group’s suggestions
for modifications to design and specification from its research and
development staff to the Group’s customers for their consideration.
When customers decide on the final design and specification, the
Group would make samples and provide to the Group’s customers
for approval.

For domestic market, the Group sold its POE umbrellas, nylon
umbrellas and umbrella parts to the Group’s customers in the
PRC which accounted for approximately 29.9% of the Group’s
total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2016. The Group’s
domestic customers would usually place orders with the Group from
selection of its existing POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas products
which are all designed by its research and development team. The
Group also sell some of its POE umbrellas and nylon umbrellas
under the Group’s Jicheng (£ /%) brand through sales to our
non-trading customers such as supermarkets.

The Group also manufactured umbrella parts as an ancillary products
mainly for the Group’s existing customers, both overseas and
domestic customers, some of which also purchased POE umbrellas
and nylon umbrellas from the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group’s new business strategy is to shift business focus from
developing upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution
network and brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the
Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher margins. To be
in line with its new business strategy, on 30 December 2016, the
Group disposed of the entire equity interest in Shandong Hengmao
to the Purchaser. The Group in return obtained a promissory note
with the aggregate principal amount of RMB34,800,000 which were
receivable 2 years from 30 December 2016 issued by the Purchaser.
The Company recognised a loss on disposal in the amount of
approximately RMB6 million which included the non-cash imputed
interest cost on the promissory note with a two year maturity of
approximately RMB6 million measured as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. For illustration
purpose only should the results on the disposal of Shangong
Hengmao calculate based on the principal amount of the promissory
note of RMB34,800,000, the Group will record a gain on disposal of
Shangdong Hengmao of approximately RMB594,000.

To diversify its business and explore potential business opportunities,
the Group is exploring and developing business opportunities and
projects.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
REVENUE

The revenue decreased from approximately RMB658 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB604 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing a decrease of
approximately 8.2%. The decrease in revenue from the PRC was
primarily due to decreased demand for the POE umbrellas compared
to the previous year. The decrease in revenue was primarily due to
the decrease in sales volume affected by poor market situation in
both PRC and export markets.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales increased from approximately RMB510 million for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB530 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016, representing an increase
of approximately 3.9%. The increase was mainly attributable to the
combined effect of the corresponding decrease in direct materials
costs and direct labour costs to cope with the Group’s decrease
in revenue for the same period and the non-cash provision for the
obsolete inventories of approximately RMB25 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWEDN

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS MARGIN

As a result of the foregoing, the gross profit decreased by
approximately RMB73 million, or 49.9%, from approximately
RMB147 million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
approximately RMB74 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 22.4%
for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 12.2% for
the year ended 31 December 2016. This was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue whereas the increase in direct costs including
rise in raw material prices and factory operating costs and the non-
cash provision for the obsolete inventories of approximately RMB25
million.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

The other income and gains decreased by approximately RMB2
million, or 22.8%, from approximately RMB11 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB8 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease was mainly due to
the decrease of net exchange gain arising from the depreciation of
Renminbi against United States dollars during the year ended 31
December 2016 than the previous year.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses decreased by approximately RMB5
million, or 28.4%, from approximately RMB18 million for the year
ended 31 December 2015 to approximately RMB13 million for the
year ended 31 December 2016. The decrease was mainly due to
sales volume decreased.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses decreased by approximately RMB34 million,
or 42.0%, from approximately RMB81 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to approximately RMB47 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The decrease in administrative expenses
was mainly due to there is no share options granted by the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 as compared
to previous year (2015: approximately RMB36 million) and no Listing
expenses were recognised during the year ended 31 December
2016 as compared to previous year (2015:approximately RMB9
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs decreased by approximately RMB1 million, or
11.9%, from approximately RMB8 million for the year ended
31 December 2015 to approximately RMB7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The decrease in finance cost was
mainly due to relatively lower average interest rate of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings during the year ended 31 December
2016 compared to the previous year and part of the drawndown of
interest-bearing borrowings were close to the end of the year.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax expense decreased by approximately RMB17 million,
or 70.2%, from approximately RMB25 million for the year ended 31
December 2015 to approximately RMB7 million for the year ended
31 December 2016, which was primarily due to decrease in the
Group’s profit before tax.

The effective tax rate increased from approximately 49.6% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately 54.7% for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

As a result for the foregoing factors, profit for the year decreased by
approximately RMB19 million, or 75.7%, from approximately RMB25
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB6 million for the year ended 31 December 2016.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s bank balances and cash
(including restricted bank deposits of approximately RMB31 million
(2015: approximately RMB24 million)) amounted to approximately
RMB169 million (2015: approximately RMB284 million), and
short-term bank borrowings amounted to RMB172 million (2015:
approximately RMB136 million). The annual interest rates of loans
ranged from 4.6% to 7.2%.

The Group’s current ratio decreased from approximately 2.3 times
as at 31 December 2015 to approximately 1.9 times as at 31
December 2016, which was calculated based on the total current
assets divided by the total current liabilities. As at 31 December
2016, the gearing ratio was approximately 60% (2015: approximately
46%), which was calculated based on the interest-bearing liabilities
as a percentage of the total equity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWED

INVENTORIES

As at 31 December 2016, the inventories was approximately
RMB180 million (2015: approximately RMB107 million). The inventory
turnover days were increased from approximately 77 days in 2015
to approximately 99 days in 2016, which was calculated based on
the average of the beginning and ending balance of inventories for
the year divided by cost of sales for the year, and multiplied by 366
days. This was mainly due to the stocking up in preparation for the
chinese new year which fell on late January 2017.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

As at 31 December 2016, the trade receivables were approximately
RMB106 million (2015: approximately RMB51 million). The Group
generally allows an average credit period of 30 to 150 days to its
trade customers. The average trade receivables turnover day was
increased from approximately 26 days in 2015 to approximately 48
days in 2016, which was calculated based on the average of the
beginning and ending trade receivable balances for the year divided
by revenue for the year and multiplied by 366 days. This was mainly
due to the increasing of delayed settlement from our customers that
utilised our credit terms granted.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

As at 31 December 2016, the trade and bills payables were
approximately RMB101 million (2015: approximately RMB64 million).
The Group’s suppliers typically grant us a credit terms ranging
from 30 days to 120 days. The average trade and bills payables
turnover days were increased from approximately 48 days in 2015
to approximately 57 days in 2016, which was calculated based
on the average of the beginning and ending of trade and bills
payable balance of the year divided by cost of sales of the year and
multiplied by 366 days. This is mainly due to an increase in purchase
of raw materials at the end of 2016.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases denominated
in United States Dollars (‘USD”), Japanese Yen (“Japanese Yen”) and
Hong Kong Dollars (“‘HKD”), which are different from the functional
currency of the group entities carrying out the transactions. Also,
certain trade receivables, pledged deposits, bank balances and
cash, trade payables and bank borrowings are denominated in
USD, Japanese Yen and HKD which are currencies other than
the functional currency of the relevant group entities. The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However,
the Directors of the Company continuously monitor the related
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arises.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had no material capital
commitment (2015: approximately RMB1 million). As at 31
December 2016, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2015: Nil).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
with a carrying amounts of approximately RMB101 million (2015:
approximately RMB106 million) and bank deposits with a carrying
amounts of approximately RMB31 million (2015: approximately
RMB24 million) were pledged to banks for bank borrowings.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2016, the Group employed a total of 1,738
employees (2015: 1,905 employees). The emolument policy of the
employees of the Group was set up by the Board based on their
experience, qualifications and competence. Other employees’
benefits include contributions to statutory mandatory provident
funds, and social insurance together with housing provident funds to
its employees in Hong Kong and the PRC respectively.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date with net proceeds received by
the Company from the global offering in the amount of approximately
HK$134.2 million (equivalent to approximately RMB106.0 million)
after deducting underwriting commissions and all related expenses.
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company published
on 30 December 2016, the Board has resolved to reallocate the
unutilised amount of approximately RMB61.4 million to the following
two areas:

1)  approximately RMB36.9 million out of the unutilised net
proceeds for buying new brand-names and/or licensing
rights of umbrella products from Southeast Asian countries
to increase its market shares in those countries as well as
investing in a trading company comprising umbrella and other
products.

2)  toincrease the allocation for approximately RMB24.5 million for
brand awareness promotions and advertising expenses both in
domestic and overseas markets.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEEFNWED T

The Board is of the view that such re-allocation of unutiised net ZEE€R A ZEBEFHDE MR HAEFE
proceeds is in line with the Group’s new business strategy to FHENANEBBESELBERE HHEE
shift business focus from developing upstream manufacturing to BB E T HF D #HE4 K& w2 R AR EERE
downstream distribution network and brand building to facilitate  FERE S 2 AREEDIEFE 7 FEFEHER -
promotion of the Group’s branded umbrellas which command higher

margins.

As at 31 December 2016, the net proceeds had been utiised as WRZZE—XNFE+-A=+—H FFEREF
follows: BERENTAE:

Utilised amount up to  Unutilised amount up

Use of Net Proceeds FSREFEAR Revised allocation 31 December 2016 to 31 December 2016
BE-B-—RF HE-Z-KF

+tZA=+—-HE T=ZA=+—-8B=xX

RETDE BHESE BHESE
RMB (million) RMB (million) RMB (million)
ARBEER ARBBEETR ARBBETR
(Approximately)
(BE4)

Increasing our production capacity by % B2 i # T

constructing a factory NREAEEERE 24.5 245 -
Paying the outstanding of the TRBBERZRTK

consideration in relation to the MOERmREFT L

construction and completion of the REZARZNHE

new 10-storey office building 3.1 3.1 -
Strengthen our technical expertise e REE 2 BiTER

and know-how to ensure continuous & ik LA FE (R 4548

improvement of our products BEREEER 3.7 3.7 -
Additional working capital and BINEBES LEM

other general corporate purposes —rFAE 10.6 10.6 -
Further expansion of our branded 008 & 80 B A

umbrellas by intensifying our REIR RGNS

marketing activities to promote our REAEERE

brand awareness both in the MEEMmE—F

domestic and overseas HEASERERS 27.2 2.7 24.5
Buying new brand-names and investing 5 B ¥ @ 2 27 &

in a trading company KE—HEH AT 36.9 - 36.9
Total st 106.0 44.6 61.4
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The Group principal objectives are to maintain and strengthen
its position as a leading umbrella manufacturer focused in Japan
market and its own branded umbrella products in the PRC market,
and increase its market share in the existing markets such as Hong
Kong, Cambodia and South Korea.

Looking ahead, the Group will shift business focus from developing
upstream manufacturing to downstream distribution network and
brand building so as to facilitate promotion of the Group’s branded
umbrellas which command higher margins and create higher values
as well as bringing better return to our shareholders. To diversify its
business and explore potential business opportunities, the Group is
exploring and developing business opportunities and projects.

EEENWEDN
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAEE

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standard of
corporate governance and has steered its development and
protected the interests of its shareholders in an enlightened and
open manner. The Board comprises four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. The Company has
adopted and complied with the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules since the
Listing Date with the following deviations:

Under paragraph A.2.1 of Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
roles of chairman and chief executive officer of an issuer should be
separated and should not be performed by the same person. Mr.
Huang is currently the Chairman of the Board and the chief executive
officer who is primarily responsible for the day-to-day management
of the Group’s business. The Directors consider that vesting the
roles of the Chairman of the Board and chief executive officer in
the same person facilitates the execution of the Group’s business
strategies and decision making, and maximizes the effectiveness of
the Group’s operation. The Directors also believe that the presence
of three independent non-executive Directors provides added
independence to our Board. The Directors will review the structure
from time to time and consider an adjustment should it become
appropriate.

Code provision A.6.7 stipulates that independent non-executive
directors should attend general meeting of the Company. Mr.
Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie, being the independent
non-executive Directors, did not attend the Company’s annual
general meeting held on 30 May 2016 due to their other business
engagements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY THE
DIRECTORS

The Directors have adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in dealing in the Company’s securities. Specific enquiries
have been made to all Directors and all Directors have confirmed
that they have fully complied with the required standard of dealings
as set out in the Model Code during the year.

BOARD OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and responsible
leadership for the Company. The Directors, individually and
collectively, must act in good faith in the best interests of the
Company and its shareholders. The Board has established three
Board committees, being the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee”
and collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors, namely Mr.
Huang Weniji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhengshuang and Mr. Chung
Kin Hung, Kenneth and three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Tso Sze Wai, Mr. Yang Xuetai and Ms. Lee Kit Ying,
Winnie.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAEE

There is no financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationship amongst Directors, except for the fact that Mr. Huang
Wenji is the spouse of Ms. Chen Jieyou (resigned on 2 December
2016). Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 37 to 39
in the annual report. A list of the Directors identifying their role and
functions and whether they are independent non-executive Directors
are available on the Company’s website.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews the corporate governance standard of the Group. It
also decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments, investment
policy, dividend and accounting policies. The Board has delegated
the authority and responsibility for implementing its business
strategies and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Directors and members of senior
management. The functions and power that are so delegated are
reviewed periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices on corporate governance
and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group, and the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management. The Board also reviews the disclosures in the
Corporate Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access to
the Group’s senior management to fulfill their duties. Independent
professional advice can be sought to assist the relevant Directors to
discharge their duties at the Group’s expense upon their request.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon their
first appointment, the directorships or other positions they are
concurrently holding at other companies or organisation. These
interests are updated on an annual basis and when necessary.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREABE

ATTENDANCE OF DIRECTORS AT MEETINGS EEHESEEBER

The attendance of the Directors at the general meetings of the #HE_ZT—<NE+_A=+—HIFE &
Company, meetings of the Board, the Audit Committee, the ZBLXFEARFIBREAS BEESEH BEXRZE
=& & i

Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee duringthe E & HEZE e RiEZZE e 2B NE
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out below: HIEAT :

Annual  Extraordinary Audit  Remuneration Nomination
general general Board committee committee committee

meeting meeting meetings meetings meetings meetings
BRR BRR BRZEE® FMZEEE REZEEE
BEAE RiAE EZ883 83 - -

(number of mestings attended/number of meetings held during respective director’s tenture)

(BERERERER SR RY/BTE3RE)

Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Huang Wenji BENERE il il 88 NATERE NATER NATER
Ms. Chen Jieyou GBIt
(resigned on 2 December 2016) (R=B—RE

+-A-BE) 0 o 77 NATER  NATEA  NATER
Mr. Yang Guang BHEE 0N on 88 NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang MEELEE 0/ 0N 88 NATER NATER NATER
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth BEEEE 0/ 0/ 88 NATEAE NATER NATER

Independent Non-executive Directors ~ B EHITES

Mr. Tso Sze Wai ERELE
(appointed on 7 October 2016) (R-B—REF
+AtRAEZA) NARER  NATER 22 NATER 11 NATER
Mr. Yang Xuetai BEALE 0/ 0/1 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong, Stephen BB TE
(resigned on 7 October 2016) (RZZ—REF
+ A+ BET) 1/1 o 4/6 3/3 1/1 1/2
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie FHEETLT 0N 01 8/8 3/3 2/2 2/2
DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE EENESRAEBER

Appropriate insurance coverage has been arranged in respect ARARIERER KR AERIAEE Y ~ /B
of potential legal actions against the Directors and officers of the AZITENEHEE WRRZHE -
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CREAEE

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to Code provision A.6.5, all Directors should participate
in continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All the Directors also
understand the importance of continuous professional development
and are committed to participating in any suitable training or relevant
materials reading in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The Company has received from each Director a confirmation
of their participation in continuous professional development by
attending training course or reading relevant materials on the topics
related to corporate governance and regulations.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to provide
independent and objective opinions to the Board, giving adequate
control and balances for the Group to protect the overall interests of
the shareholders and the Group. They serve actively on the Board
and its committees to provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-executive
Directors, representing more than one-third of the Board. One
of the independent non-executive Directors has the appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted confirmation
of his/her independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all of the independent non-executive
Directors are independent.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee.
Each Board Committee has its defined and written terms of
reference approved by the Board covering its duties, powers and
functions. Their terms of reference are available on the Company’s
website.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management or
professional advice if considered necessary.

U]

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee on 23 January
2015 with specific written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are
to assist the Board by providing an independent view on the
effectiveness of the financial reporting process, internal control
and risk management systems of the Group, overseeing the
audit process and performing other duties and responsibilities
as assigned by the Board.

As at the date of this annual report, the Audit Committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Tso Sze Wai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit
Committee held three meetings to review the annual and
interim results of the Group and make recommendations to
the Board and the management in respect of the Group's
financial reporting and internal control procedures. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Audit Committee has
also reviewed, with the management and the Company’s
auditors, the Group’s significant internal controls and financial
matters in accordance with the Audit Committee’s written
terms of reference and made relevant recommendations
to the Board. The Audit Committee’s review covered the
audit scope and findings, external auditors’ independence
and performance, the Group’s accounting principles and
practices, the Listing Rules and statutory compliance,
connected transactions, internal controls, risk management,
financial reporting matters (including the interim and annual
financial reports for the Board’s approval) and the adequacy
of resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function as well
as their training programmes and budget. It also reviewed this
Corporate Governance Report and an internal control review
report on the Company prepared by an independent advisor.
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i

(In)

*kERRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The primary duties of the remuneration
committee include making recommendations to the Board
on the policy and structure for all Directors and senior
management, reviewing the terms of remuneration packages,
determining the award of bonuses and considering the grant
of options under the share option scheme of the Company. As
at the date of this annual report, the remuneration committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (Chairperson of the Remuneration
Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai and Mr. Yang Xuetai.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting to review the remuneration
policy, remuneration packages of the Directors and the
senior management in accordance with the Remuneration
Committee’s written terms of reference.

Particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the five
highest paid employees as required to be disclosed pursuant
to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in note 13 to
the financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(i) NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee on 23
January 2015 with written terms of reference in compliance
with the Code. The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Xuetai
(Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Tso Sze Wai
and Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie. The principal responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the composition
of the Board, including its structure, size and diversity at
least annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements of the
business of the Group. It is also responsible to consider and
recommend to the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession planning
of Directors and assess the independence of independent
non-executive Directors. The Nomination Committee will also
give consideration to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined
below) when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will review the
Board Diversity Policy (as defined below), so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementing the Board
Diversity Policy (as defined below) and to monitor the progress
on achieving these objectives.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, two meetings was
held by the Nomination Committee to, among other things,
review the structure, size and composition of the board, assess
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, formulate the board diversity policy and recommend
to the board for approval. The Nomination Committee reviewed
the board diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and
considered the Group achieved the policy since its adoption.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Company’s corporate governance function is carried out by the
Board pursuant to a set of written terms of reference adopted by the
Board on 23 January 2015 in compliance with provision D.3.1 of the
CG Code, which include (a) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance; (b) to review and
monitor the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management of the Group; (c) to review and
monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements; (d) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if any) applicable to
employees of the Group and the Directors; and (e) to review the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and relevant disclosure
in the corporate governance report of the annual report of the
Company.

BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Regular board meetings are held at quarterly intervals with additional
meetings convened as and when necessary to discuss the overall
strategic directions, the Group’s operations, financial performance,
and to approve interim and annual results and other significant
matters. For regular meetings, Board members are given at least
14 days prior notice and agenda with supporting papers are sent to
Directors not less than 3 days before the relevant meeting is held.
Directors may propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary
to include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in any proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board
at board meetings and abstain from voting in favour of the related
board resolutions as appropriate.

Minutes of meetings of the Board and Board Committees are
kept by the Company Secretary in sufficient details of the matters
considered and decisions reached, including dissenting views
expressed, and are open for inspection on reasonable notice by any
Director. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors
for their comments and records respectively within a reasonable time
after the board meeting is held.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary with a view to ensuring the Board procedures are followed.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, a person
may be appointed as a Director either by the shareholders in general
meeting or by the Board. Any Directors appointed by the Board as
additional Directors or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until
the next following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required to retire
by rotation at least once every three years at the annual general
meeting, and are eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

Mr. Yang Xuetai, being independent non-executive Director has
entered into an appointment letter with the Company for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Mr. Tso Sze
Wai has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for
a term of one year commencing from 7 October 2016. Ms. Lee
Kit Ying, Winnie has entered into an appointment letter with the
Company for a term of one year.

Each of Mr. Yang Guang and Mr. Lin Zhenshuang, being executive
Directors, and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, being an independent non-executive
Director, will be subject to retirement and re-election at annual
general meeting of the Company in accordance with the Company’s
articles of association.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board diversity
policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 23 January 2015. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity of Board
members. While all Board appointments will continue to be made on
a merit basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the
needs of the Company’s business. Selection of candidates will be
based on a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Mr. Cheung Ka Shing, a member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant, who is an
employee of the Company as the Company Secretary. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to time. All Directors
have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary
to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules and
regulations are followed.

During the year under review, Mr. Cheung Ka Shing has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training and has fulfilled
the requirement pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is overall responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring that the Group
established and maintained appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee reviews the risk management and internal
controls that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis.
The Audit Committee would consider the adequacy of resource,
qualifications and experience and training of staff and external
advisor of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting function.

The management of the Group is responsible for designing,
maintaining, implementing and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control system to ensure adequate control in place to
safeguard the Group’s assets and stakeholder’s interest.

The Group has established risk management procedures to address
and handle the all significant risks associate with the business of the
Group. The Board would perform annual review on any significant
change of the business environment and establish procedures
to response the risks result from significant change of business
environment. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed to mitigate the potential losses of the business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The management would identify the risks associate with the business
of the Group by considering both internal and external factors and
events which include political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and staff. Each of risks has been assessed and prioritised
based on their relevant impact and occurrence opportunity. The
relevant risk management strategy would be applied to each type of
risks according to the assessment results, type of risk management
strategy has been listed as follow:

- Risk retention and reduction: accept the impact of risk or
undertake actions by the Group to reduce the impact of the
risks;

- Risk avoidance: change business process or objective so as to
avoid the risk;

- Risk sharing and diversification: diversify the effect of the risk
or allocate to different location or product or market;

- Risk transfer: transfer ownership and liability to a third party.

The internal control systems are designed and implemented to
reduce the risks associated with the business accepted by the
Group and minimise the adverse impact results from the risks. The
risk management and internal control system are design to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives,
and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has engaged
an external advisory firm to undertake the internal audit function
to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of the risk management
and internal control system of the Group. There is no significant
deficiency and weakness on the internal control system has
been identified by the external advisory firm for the year ended
31 December 2016.

The Board considered that, for the year ended 31 December 2016,
the risk management and internal control system and procedures
of the Group, covering all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
were reasonably effective and adequate.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND AUDIT
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the year and
in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The Company has selected appropriate accounting
policies and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers that
the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for
the foreseeable future and not aware of any material uncertainties
relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.
The responsibilities of Elite Partners CPA Limited, the Company’s
external auditor, with respect to financial reporting are set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year, the Group engaged external auditors to perform
audit and non-audit services amounted to approximately
RMB560,000 and RMB268,000 respectively. The non-audit services
included primarily internal control consultancy and reviewing certain
financial information.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company has in place a policy on handling and dissemination
of inside information (“Policy”) which sets out the procedures
and internal controls for handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to place
any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time for the
market to price the listed securities of the Company with the latest
available information. This Policy also provides guidelines to staff
of the Company to ensure proper safeguards exist to prevent the
Company from breaching the statutory disclosure requirements. It
also includes appropriate internal control and reporting systems to
identify and assess potential inside information. Dissemination of
inside information of the Company shall be conducted by publishing
the relevant information on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company, according to the requirements of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance structure, enable
all its shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their rights in
an informed manner and allow all shareholders to engage actively
with the Company. Under the Company’s articles of association,
the shareholder communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the Company enjoy,
among others, the following rights:

U]

(I

PARTICIPATION AT GENERAL MEETINGS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for direct communication between the Board and the
shareholders. The Company encourages the participation of
the shareholders through annual general meetings and other
general meetings where the shareholders meet and exchange
views with the Board, and to exercise their right to vote at
meetings. The Company shall arrange notices of meetings
and circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to be
sent to the shareholders no less than 20 business days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions are
proposed on each substantial issue, including the election of
individual Directors.

ENQUIRIES AND PROPOSALS TO THE BOARD

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by either directly
raising questions on both operational and governance matters
to the Board and Board Committees at the general meetings
or providing written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the principal place of business of
the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room 904,
Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong
or via email to enquiry@jcumbrella.com.
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CONVENING EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene an
extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings
shall also be convened on the requisition of one or more
shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition,
not less than one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition
shall be made in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary and deposited at the principal place of business
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at Room
904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong
Kong, for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Directors for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be
held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s articles of
association or the Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands regarding
procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at
general meetings other than a proposal of a person for election
as director. Shareholders may follow the procedures set out
above to convene an extraordinary general meeting for any
business specified in such written requisition.

The notice of annual general meeting together with the
accompanying circular setting out the relevant information as
required under the Listing Rules are sent to shareholders at
least 20 clear business days prior to the meeting. Poll voting
has been adopted for decision-making at shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to one vote.
Details of the poll voting procedures are set out in the circular
sent to shareholders prior to the meeting and explained at
the commencement of the meeting. Voting results are posted
on the Company’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.
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(IV) PROCEDURES FOR PROPOSING A PERSON FOR ELECTION AS (V) REALTSEESNERF

A DIRECTOR

Pursuant to the Article 113 of the articles of association of BEBAAFRBEBERBAE3G K
the Company, no person other than a Director retiring at BAESIN BETAATEEERET
the meeting shall, unless recommended by the Directors for ARRAE LEEES RIFEEEH
election, be eligible for election as a Director at any general BEE HOBHEMAMEKPERIE
meeting unless notice in writing of the intention to propose HHBALEEES I EERA A
that person for election as a Director and notice in writing by THEENEABANRABEBEE XF
that person of his willingness to be elected shall have been RARBRHERNBPERLRE BEHA
lodged at the head office or at the registration office of the MAFTRERMARE AT BB
Company. The period for lodgement of the notices required BEE /REAEBEEARETER
will commerce no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the ZERRAGRITABAIER A AAR
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and AEBEHBANSEHRRTEIRER -

end no later than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting and the minimum length of the period during which
such notices to the Company may be given will be at least

seven days.
CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS ERXH
During the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no changein  HE _-—ZT— X XF+-_AZ+—HBIFE XK
the memorandum and articles of association of the Company. UNEIEVE R =R N DGl )0
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RE HERERRE

INTRODUCTION AND SCOPE OF THE ESG REPORT

The Group aims to uphold the idea of sustainability, with the
publication of the Environmental, Social and Governance report. The
report has been prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide.

The Environmental, Social and Governance report of the Group
(the “ESG Report”) has been presented into two subject areas,
Environmental and Social and each subject area will have various
aspects to disclose the relevant policies and the status of compliance
with relevant laws and regulations as addressed by the ESG Guide.
The Board confirms the report has been reviewed and approved to
ensure all material issues and impacts are fairly presented.

As this is the first ESG report of the Group it will present mainly
policies, initiatives and performance of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2016 and also highlight material aspects identified in
2016. The following table will demonstrate the relationship between
ESG guide and the issues found relevant to the Group:
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ESG Guide

BiR -HERERES

A. Environmental

AEBERBEEENRER:

Relevant ESG issues to the Group
HASEEBENRE HEREREEH

ARE

A.1 Emissions Waste water and carbon dioxide management
AEER BEK R —EAbiE B

A.2 Use of resources Energy and water consumption
A2ERER BEIR KK E TR IEFE

A.3 Environmental and natural resources Measures in reducing environmental impact
ABRERBARER BB R BN

B. Social

B.it &

B.1 Employment Labour practices

B.1{E (& L TER

B.2 Health and safety Workplace health and safety

B2 REEZ 2 TESRigRELZ S

B.3 Development and training Employee development and training
B.3% & R %3 18 B 3w KIEH

B.4 Labour standards Child labour and forced labor

B4 B %Al ETIR®BALEH

B.5 Supply chain management Supplier management

B5fitESE B HEmER

B.6 Product responsibility Product safety and quality
B6EmMEE EmZrhEE

B.7 Anti-corruption Anti-corruption and money laundering
B.7R & ¥ f I8 B B Ak 8

B.8 Community investment Community involvement

B8t ER A Fan g
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ABOUT THE GROUP

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of Polyolefin Elastomers (“POE”) umbrellas, nylon umbrellas and
umbrella parts such as plastic cloth and shaft.

The Group follows a sustainable development strategy by providing
the employees with a safe and healthy working environment as well
as training and promoting supply chain policies and implementing a
set of comprehensive measures for environmental protection.

The corporate social responsibility factors, ESG factors, have figured
ever more prominently in the value of corporations. A wide variety
of sustainability or non-financial factors can better understand the
potential impact on the valuation of the Company.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

A.1 Emissions

When a business go green, they will impact the
environment in a positive way. The Group’s umbrella
manufacturing business closely relates to environmental
protection and it is one of the core values at the
Group. The Group follows closely the relevant laws and
regulations implemented and specific actions taken by
different countries on the reduction of greenhouse gas
emission.

The Group are under governed by Environmental
Protection of the People’s Republic of China
Prevention (/1 #E AR ZFEIRERZEE) , Control
of Atmospheric Pollution (F#ZE AR FEXME K& )53
fi3a3%) and Urban Drainage and Sewage Treatment
Ordinance (Y $EBEKE5KEE K HI) . Violated
these environmental regulations may result in temporary
suspension of production. During the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group has been fully complied
with these environmental regulations.

Carbon dioxide management

The Group repeatedly implemented energy saving
projects and replacement of high carbon emissions
as measures in order to establish emission reduction
and energy saving. The Group’s factories during
the production are completely based on ISO 14001
standard, the environmental management system.
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RE HERERRKE

The POE umbrella and nylon umbrella business are the
most critical environmental concern of the Group and
its stakeholders. The machineries used for producing
the POE umbrella and nylon umbrella are powered by
electricity which will release certain carbon dioxide.
Therefore, the Group has established policies to limit
emissions from the production and frequent facilities
checking.

Waste water management

The Group engaged in production has taken restrict
control of discharging waste into air, land and water. It is
the Group’s policies to maintain the manufacture process
in an efficiency and effective manner. The Group strived
to mitigate the environmental impact of its umbrella
producing activities. The Group ensured waste water is
properly connected to municipal sewage system and all
land waste is send to municipal solid waste management
plant during production.

A2

Use of Resources A2

Energy and water consumption

The Group is committed to efficiently consume resources
during production. For the year ended 31 December
2016, all factories and offices of the Group consumed
over 9,280,000 kWh of total electricity. The Group aims
to reduce consumption through more targeted efforts
by participating in an energy conservation programme.
The Group’s resources consumption is listed in the table
below:

Resources Consumption

POERRZE N ERER R EK R AE
ErEMNZHAEEREENRE
Y] - BN A EPOERA R BENR
RS MENRE) WEBR—
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Electricity consumption kWh 10,476,878
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Water consumption m? 179,993
KEFBFE ST R

It is the Group’s policy to maintain the manufacture
process in an efficient and effective manner to
accordingly reduce the energy waste in the production.
This is the key for the Group to attribute to the
environmental friendly strategies. The Group is committed
to perform regular assessment in analysing data in aims
for better management in the use of resource.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

A.3 The Environment and Natural Resources

Measures in reducing environmental impact

The Group has been promoting the sustainable use
of natural resources. For example, Polyvinyl Chloride
(“PVC”) is cheap, easy to assemble and durable.
However, PVC degrades very slowly, and can release
toxic when fumes. The Group has been using POE
to manufacture its products. POE is an environmental
friendly fabric for umbrellas’ canopy which is free of
azo and heavy metal chromium. Umbrella and parasol
made of POE is biodegradable and recyclable and is an
environmentally friendly substitute for PVC.

Also, the Group has policy on daily inspection and
maintenance in order to retain facilities’ efficiency.

B. SOCIAL
B.1  Employment
Labour practices

As a labour-intensive industry, the Group’s success
would greatly rely on the effort contributed by employees
of the Group. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the Group has maintained three manufacturing bases
in China. For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
total number of the employees of the Group in China
was 1,738. The Group has committed in having a good
workplace practice free from discrimination and received
equal opportunities for all despite of age, gender, race,
colour, sexual orientation, disability or marital status to
increases employee satisfaction.

To ensure an equal and fair working environment, the
Group has adopted practices and policies of Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China {1 %E A R F1
Bl &5 &)%) , Labour Contract Law of People’s Republic
of China (FZEARKEFELE AR E) and other
relevant laws.

Our employment contract specified the terms including
compensation and dismissal, working hours, rest
periods and other benefits and welfare for our staff. The
Group’s employee handbook distributed to employees
also highlight important information of policies on
compensation, employee benefits, rights on termination,
business conduct and leave benefits.
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RE HERERRKE

B.2

B.3

Health and Safety
Workplace health and safety

In order to minimise workplace incidents and put
the health and safety of the staffs as the priority of
productions, the Group has established a set of staff
handbook which included sufficient policies on the safety
and every worker would require to follow the safety
instruction. During the year, the Group has no reported
incidents of non-compliance with regulations concerning
employment.

The Group has been fully complied with law and
regulations regarding the health and safety such as
Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China (/% A
RAFIBIE E)5E) of occupational safety and health and
other applicable regulations to provide a safe, healthy
and comfortable working environment. Workplace is
equipped with fire and safety equipment to prevent
outbreak of fire accident and the validity of the fire
facilities have been regularly checked. Fire exits are also
constantly kept clear. Staff will be trained and ensure
basic knowledge of using fire extinguish equipment.
Practice fire drill has also been regularly conducted.
No significant injury records from workplace has been
incurred for the year ended 31 December 2016. There
is strict requirement for staff in clothing, access of
non-operational staff, knowledge in workplace hazards to
ensure the safety of our employees.

Development and Training
Employee development and training

The Group encourages its employees to advance and
improve themselves pursuing further studies. It has
various training programmes, internal and external, to
full develop its workforce. Regularly, staffs would be sent
to attend training courses such as first aids training,
management certificate studies, top-up courses for
specialized skills.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, there are
over 4,200 participants in total for every month’s training
course. Subjects included health and safety, technical
training, management, language training, information
technology, etc. Then, company would gather back
feedback and recommendations from staffs to further
improve the quality and effectiveness of training.
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B.4

B.5

B.6

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE HERERRE

Labour Standards
Child labour and forced labor

The Group has strictly complied with Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China (% AR
MBI B A FJE) . The Group is complied with the
relevant labour standards since labour standards may
not be the same in various jurisdictions. According to
the Law of the PRC on the Protection of Minors and
as stipulated by the Labour Law of the PRC in terms
of employment management, there is neither child nor
forced labour in our Group’s operation. For the year
ended 31 December 2016, no employees of the Group
aged under 16 and there is no dispute between the
Group and its staffs.

Supply Chain Management
Supplier management

In order to maintain long term relationship with its
suppliers for ensuring stable supply, the Group
establishes a comprehensive vertical supply chain
management system through supplier screening and
management and resource integration. Raw materials
suppliers are the major suppliers of the Group. Therefore,
the Group would evaluate the performance of the major
vendors of the Group, on whether the quality of raw
materials have passed the Group’s requirement and
standards. If unqualify it will be returned to supplier.

The quality and safety of sanitary ware is top priorities of
the Group. The Group are committed to ensure its supply
chain is operating as efficiently as possible to ensure its
products are safe and standardised. Greater emphasis is
placed on the communication and relationship with the
suppliers towards sustainable development.

Product Responsibility
Product safety and quality

The Group has put the product quality as its first priority
as the performance of the product can directly affect
the relationship with customers as well as the reputation
of the business. Therefore, the Group has already
been focusing on meeting customer expectations and
delivering customer satisfaction by introducing ISO 9001.
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B.8

HERERRSE

The products of the Group are subjected to the Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China {FZE A
RAMBEIZE RS &%) which make the company have a
responsibility to compensate for the damage done to the
person or property if the products are defected. For the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Group did not have
any product returned due to safety or health problems or
any complaint received from our customers. In order to
protect consumer data and privacy client information are
kept in confidential and destroy on a timely basis.

Anti-Corruption
Anti-corruption and money laundering

The Group complied with all relevant laws and
regulations such as Criminal law of the People’s Republic
of China (H#EARKMEIFIZE) and the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the People’s Republic (& ZE A
REMB K TIEE#HFA) . For the year ended 31
December 2016, such events have never happened
in the Group. Maintaining high standards of business
integrity in its operation, the Group has no tolerance
towards any corruption, fraud, money laundering, bribery,
and extortion. Integrity is also the key for company
sustainability and better development of the Group.

The Group has policy to comply with guideline on
anti-money laundering a counter-terrorist financing. Any
suspicious transactions would be notified and reported
to the relevant governing body by responsible officer.
A system with good moral integrity and anti-corruption
mechanism is the cornerstone for a sustainable and
healthy development of the Group.

Community Investment
Community involvement

The Group always believe that giving back to the society
is definitely one of the duty to do year by year. The
Group has contributed a lot to the education field by
donating and help building local schools through Jinjiang
City Qing Yang education development funding. Besides,
the Group shows its care to the elderly association and
the Jinjiang charity.

In order to be a good business leader, the Group will
also concern about the society and try to be a good
community leader as well. This is a responsibility to every
successful company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENREBABERFS

DIRECTORS
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenji (=325 ) , aged 48, is the Chairman of the Board.
Mr. Huang was appointed as a Director on 12 June 2014 and
re-designated as an executive Director on 25 September 2014. He
founded our Group in May 1996 and is responsible for the overall
management, strategic development and major decision-making
of our Group. Mr. Huang is a Controlling Shareholder. Mr. Huang
completed his secondary education in the PRC in July 1987.

Mr. Yang Guang (153%) , aged 48, was appointed as an executive
Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group in November
2007 as financial controller as well as secretary to the board of
directors of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. ({82 =R R %¥H
fR 2 F]) (“Fujian Jicheng”). Mr. Yang has been the deputy general
manager of Fujian Jicheng since November 2010, and is responsible
for supervising our Group’s production. He worked for A& 45 % 8
A% 17 B BR A &) (Daye Special Steel Co., Ltd.) as finance officer from
November 1999, and was promoted to finance manager in August
2001. He then worked for t&i&)8 &£ B AR A A (Fujan Xunxing
Group Company Limited) as finance manager from May 2002 to
October 2007. Mr. Yang graduated from Zhongnan University of
Economics with finance major in July 1994.

Mr. Lin Zhenshuang (# 5 %), aged 38, was appointed as an
executive Director on 25 September 2014. He joined our Group
in August 2001 and is the manager of the international business
department of Jinjlang Jicheng Industry Co., Ltd. (BT EKE T
AR~ 7]) (“Jinjiang Jicheng”). He is responsible for supervising our
Group’s sales and marketing operations. Mr. Lin graduated from
Huagiao University with a diploma in Japanese Language in June
2000.
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Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth ({27 ) , aged 50, was appointed an
executive Director of the Company on 13 April 2015. He has more
than 10 years’ experience in project management and business
strategic planning. Mr. Chung worked as a production manager
in the field of consumer electronics products for 5 years and
his responsibilities mainly focused on overseeing the production
process. Mr. Chung is responsible for the strategic planning and
finance of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai (5 B # ), aged 46, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 7 October 2016. Mr. Tso
holds a Bachelor degree in Commerce awarded by University
of New South Wales, Australia and a postgraduate diploma in
Computing in the University of Western Sydney, Australia. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Accountants. He has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, corporate finance and
corporate secretarial matters. He is currently the financial controller
and company secretary of Green Energy Group Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 979).
Prior to that, he had held senior management positions in a number
of listed companies in Hong Kong and Singapore. In July 2015, Mr.
Tso was appointed as an independent non-executive director of Hua
Han Health Industry Holdings Limited, a company whose shares are
listed on the Main Board of Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 587).
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Mr. Yang Xuetai (#5522 K), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 23 January 2015. Mr. Yang
graduated from China Academy of Art with a bachelor degree in
industrial design in July 1998 and a master degree in art in January
2010. He has been working for the art faculty of The Huagiao
University as assistant professor since 2010. He had also been a
visiting scholar of Tunghai University in Taiwan for five months in
2012.

Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie (2455 ) , aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 21 August 2015. Ms. Lee
holds a Postgraduate certificate in Business Administration from
The Open University of Hong Kong and Diploma in Accounting from
The University of Hong Kong, School of Professional and Continuing
Education. Ms. Lee has over 20 years of experience in finance and
administration. She has worked for various foreign and multi-national
organisation. Currently, she works for a private electronic company
as finance and administration manager and company secretary.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing (5837 ) , aged 35, is the financial controller
of our Company. He joined our Group in March 2014. Mr. Cheung
worked for Lau & Fung CPA Limited as auditor from June 2005
to May 2007 and NCN CPA Limited as auditor from June 2007 to
August 2008. He had also worked for SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
from September 2008 to April 2011, and left as a senior accountant.
He worked for a private company as finance manager from April
2011 to February 2014. Mr. Cheung was recognised as a certified
public accountant by The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants on 14 July 2009. He received his bachelor’s degree in
accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University in July 2005.

Mr. Liu Liangping (2| R ) , aged 48, is the manager of the Group’s
research and development department. He joined our Group in
2000 as manager of the production department of Jinjiang Jicheng.
He has later become the manager of the Group’s research and
development department and is responsible for supervising our
Group’s product design, and research and development operations.
Mr. Liu completed his secondary education in the PRC in June 1986.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Cheung Ka Shing (5% % i) is the company secretary of the
Company and please refer to his biography in the paragraphs
headed “Senior Management” above for details.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and sale
of umbrella. The principal activities and other particulars of the
subsidiaries are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A business review in respect of the Group’s performance for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and the material factors underlying its
results and financial position, principal risks and uncertainties facing
the Group, as well as the Group’s environmental policies, are set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on
pages 6 to 13 of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the
environment and communities in which it operates. The Group is
committed adopt effective measures to achieve efficient use of
resources, energy saving and waste reduction. We strive to minimize
our environmental impact by energy saving, recycling of used
papers, office supplies and other materials. For details, please refer
to the section headed “Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG)
Report” on pages 30 to 36 of this report.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any incidence of
non-compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

40  CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED

PESRERERAF

EEMAREFHRERNAEEEE_T—X
FT_A=T"HLFELEZSREMBR
%0

EERBHE

ARFERNEHGEMAT - AEENEE
ES L el

FTEXH

AEENIEXGRRELHERNR-TB
E Y )= PNCIEIE S S S e e
532 -

KBOE

FRAEEBRE_T—R"F+-_A=1+—H
L FEZRE N EERE RS BN EREE
MEBEERRX AEBEEENETZRARLTE
ERZUAMAEENRERR ZZBRES
RAREFCEIBE[ERENwEDN] —
gfe

RERREEBTEERER

AEEH AR S HIBE RS KA E S
ESEBEL B A RDARE B ERAE
TR S IR  EE BOAS B 1% - BV B
BRI REALR PR R EAD R
BRABNAELRFOLE - BN B
SHAREFI0E6EN [RE A RRER]
— e

FAAEEYTABEHAEENER L
BEEARENTMERBRIERERZ
ERER



RELATIONS WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Board recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
strives to motivate its employees with competitive remuneration
package and opportunities for advancement and improvement
of their skills to attract and retain our employees. The Board
reviews the remuneration package of our employees annually and
makes necessary adjustments to conform to the prevailing market
practices. The Group also adopted share options scheme to reward
the contribution of the employees as an incentive.

The Board also strives to develop long-standing and good
relationships with our customers and suppliers in order to achieve
the Group’s long-term goals.

During the year, there was no significant dispute between the Group
and our business partners.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, aggregate sales to the
Group’s largest and top five customers accounted for approximately
25.7% (2015: approximately 18.3%) and approximately 72.9%
(2015: approximately 53.4%), respectively, of the Group’s total
Revenue for the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, aggregate purchases
from the Group’s largest and top five suppliers of raw materials
accounted for approximately 35.2% (2015: approximately 19.4%)
and approximately 57.0% (2015: approximately 49.1%), respectively,
of the Group’s total purchases for the year.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates or
any Shareholder of the Company (who or which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any interest in the Group’s top five customers and
suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 124 of
the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of the Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 58 to 123 of the
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 15 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of reserves of the Company and the Group are set out in note
27 to the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

There was no reserve available for distribution to the shareholders of
the Company as at 31 December 2016.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated approximately RMB1 million
(2015: approximately RMB1 million).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2016.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Huang Wenii
Ms. Chen Jieyou
(resigned on 2 December 2016)
Mr. Yang Guang
Mr. Lin Zhenshuang
Mr. Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tso Sze Wai
(appointed on 7 October 2016)
Mr. Yang Xuetai
Mr. Chan Shiu Kwong, Stephen
(resigned on 7 October 2016)
Ms. Lee Kit Ying, Winnie

Pursuant to Article 108 and Article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association, Mr. Yang Guang and Mr. Lin Zhenshuang, being
executive Directors, and Mr. Tso Sze Wai, being an independent
non-executive Director, shall retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. All the retiring Directors are eligible for re-elections.
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During the year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, Mr.
Huang Wenji, Mr. Yang Guang, Mr. Lin Zhenshuang and Mr. Chung
Kin Hung, Kenneth are also directors of certain subsidiaries of the
Company. Other director of the Company’s subsidiaries include Mr.
Chen Ruixin.

During the year, Ms. Chen Jieyou was also director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other director of the Company’s
subsidiaries include Mr. Yan Gangchang.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors, including those proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting, has a service agreement
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the year ended 31 December
2016.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2016, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive in the Company’s shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the associated corporations of
the Company, within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”) which will have to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8
of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he is taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or
which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were as follows:

LONG POSITIONS IN THE COMPANY
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EERIETBRAEREZNES

R-_E—ARNFE+_A=+—"H EFERTE
THABRARRARRMD AAREBEE (F
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Approximate
Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interests Capacity Shares shareholding
Esps EEME &4 ROHE HBAKKREIL
Mr. Huang Weniji (Note) Long position Interest in a 55,863,470,000 74.48%
controlled
corporation
B EAAE (M) e REEHEB R
Note: B 5

Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Huang
Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be interested in the shares
held by Jicheng Investment Limited under the SFO.

Saved as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, none of
the Directors and the chief executives of the Company and their
respective associates had any interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) as recorded in the register of the Company required to be
kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2016, the persons or corporations who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

Jicheng Investment Limited HE XL X EEERE
mEA AL RIEZHFARBAERI EXEELEE
A8 YER Jicheng Investment Limited Fr 45 A% {7 7
Bz

B EXWEESN RARSHEY RRAAF
RIEFEZ LB G E32G6MFEN B
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Nature of interests

BEME

Capacity
87}

Jicheng Investment Limited Long position

5] EnEAA
Mr. Huang Wenii (Note 1) LLong position Interest in a

Beneficial owner

controlled corporation

BXERLE (HE) R

Ms. Chen Jieyou (Note 2) Long position

PBRER B AT (fiF5E2) e (L £
Notes:
1. Jicheng Investment Limited is wholly and beneficially owned by

Mr. Huang Weniji. Accordingly, Mr. Huang Weniji is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Jicheng Investment Limited under
the SFO.

2. Ms. Chen Jieyou is the spouse of Mr. Huang Wenji and accordingly
is deemed to be interested in the shares in which Mr. Huang Weniji
has interest under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this report, the Directors
were not aware of any other persons or corporation having an
interest or short position in shares or underlying shares of the
Company which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, except for those
disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements, the Group had
no material connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions between the Group and its connected persons (as
defined under the Listing Rules) which are subject to the reporting,
announcement and the independent shareholders’ approval
requirement under the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

No contract of significance to which the Company, or any of its
holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party,
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme of the Company as disclosed in
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or existed during the
year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles of Association, every Director or other officers of
the Company acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
shall be entitled to be indemnified against of the Company shall be
entitled to be indemnified against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which he/she may incur or sustain in or
about the execution of his/her duties in his/her office. The Company
has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action
against its Directors and officers.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

The independent non-executive Directors have also reviewed the
confirmation given by Mr. Huang Wenji and Jicheng Investment
Limited, being controlling shareholders of the Company, to ensure
their compliance with the non-competition undertakings as disclosed
in the prospectus of the Company dated 3 February 2015.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

There had been no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and controlling shareholders (as defined in
the Listing Rules) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries during
the year.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with the
business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest with the
Group.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 23 January
2015 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible persons for
their past contributions and attracting and retaining, or otherwise
maintaining on-going relationships with, such eligible persons who
are significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject to the
earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme in accordance with
the rule thereof, the Share Option Scheme shall remain in force for a
period of ten years commencing on the Listing Date.
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Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed, full-time
or part-time employees, executive or officers of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any directors or proposed director (including
non-executive director and independent non-executive directors)
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect
shareholder of the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any
advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in
general meeting, i.e. 7,500,000,000 shares of the Company. Subject
to the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of the
shareholders in general meeting and/or such other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time, the Board may:

(i) renew this limit at any time to 10% of the shares in issue as
at the date of the approval by the shareholders in general
meeting; and/or

(i) grant options beyond the 10% limit to eligible participants
specifically identified by the Board.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the maximum number of shares to
be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed
30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to time.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon the exercise of
options granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme adopted by the Group (including both
exercised or outstanding options) to each grantee within any
12-months period, is limited to 1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time. Any further grant of options in excess of 1% limit
shall be subject to: (i) the issue of a circular by the Company; and
(i) the approval of the shareholders in general meeting and/or other
requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules from time to time.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
Directors of the Company. In addition, any share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in general meeting.
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The exercise period of the share options granted is determinable RHEMBRETFHEEEE T Z BT
by the directors, which period may commence from the date of the BEBERERER L BHMKG EERER D
offer of the share options, and ends on a date which is not later HEFTBBTFIL IIEREBHREER
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options subject IF1§&X 7T ERERBBELITHEEBMBE
to the provisions for early termination thereof. There is no minimum  JE#E — B SR HAMR - BB AR AT 2] 2 82 A B 5t
period for which an option must be held before it can be exercised. EME FHRIEE B H%B21B 5 Z AR ARQ A
Participants of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the 1.0

Company HK1.0 upon acceptance of the grant on or before 21 days

after the offer date.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the ERETFEEHEEET ETBER T
directors, but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the closing price & () AN A AR AR EZE R LBERES
of the Company’s shares as quoted on the Stock Exchange’s daily B (MBEALXR)EBIANTHEREBERM
quotations sheet for trade in one or more board lots of the shares on B & — Fak LA F IR FrRUTHE : (i) A2 &)
the date of the offer for the grant, which must be a business day; (i) P& R EEEH X L B 8 a1 T2 ¥ B 7 5
the average closing price of the Company’s shares as quoted onthe X FTE HRBE R TR FHUW T E ¢ K (i) B
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the five business days HI1E °

immediately preceding the date of offer; and (jii) the nominal value of

a share.

The following table disclosed movements in the Company’s share TXRIFTBEAN D IBRIERAEE 2 E5):
options during the year:

Exercise Outstanding Adjusted during Lapsed during Outstanding at
Grantee Date of grant Exercise period price at 1.1.2016 the year the year 31.12.2016
R-B-R%
T=A
=t-8
fiEE HAEHE HRE AN AR ATE
(Note a) (Note b)
(KaEa) (M=Db)
Consultants 18.6.2015 18.6.2015 to 0.314 60,000,000 240,000,000 (300,000,000) -
17.6.2016
B —Z-nE “ET-RF~ATNBE
~ATNE ZE-NERATEA
Notes: Bt 3 -

(@)  The exercise price per share option was adjusted upon the 2016 share  (a) NEREZTEEER - X~FHA
subdivision on 26 April 2016. T RBET S NERGIFAEIEARE

(o)  The numbers of share options were adjusted upon the 2016 share (b)) BEREHEENR T RFEA -+ E#
subdivision on 26 April 2016. TZE—RNEROIFMEEIELAE-
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Director of the Company or their respective spouses
or minor children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes organized by the PRC municipal and provincial government
authorities for the Group’s eligible employees in the PRC, and
operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the employees in
Hong Kong.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to adopt corporate governance practice.
The Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 14 to 29.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring Auditor, Elite Partners CPA
Limited will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board
Huang Weniji
Chairman and Executive Director

Fujian Province, the PRC, 29 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B AfS1E R s 6 R AT A FRANSE]
ELITE PARTNERS CPA LIMITED

‘ ) Certified Public Accountants
TO THE MEMBERS OF CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Jicheng Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 51 to 123, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2016, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
18 3 B BLAT R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.

Key audit matter
HARERER

Assessment of the recoverability of the trade receivables
B 5 W k8 Ty [E] 14 5P

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB105.7 million which was attributable to the sales
of umbirellas. As discussed in note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements, the general credit period of trade receivables ranged
from 30 to 150 days.

RZE—RE+TZA=+—H EBEXEREHENEMEEDN
B RIFIAN ARB105.78 BT - iR A F B mKRM T 19Pm
2 5 REIKGRIE 2 — R8BI/ F308 £1500 -

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
consider any significant change in credit quality of the trade
receivables from the data when sales were made to customers. The
directors of the Company concluded that no provision for impairment
is necessary in respect of these balances as at 31 December 2016.
RETESRKFRENATKBEME BESEEREBERABEER
PETHENBBEERZSEIRNREGEEZNERE
B BRAREFRABAR-ZT—R"ET-_A=+—HH%ZS
FEERET IR E BB -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EANEREEERELREHEZARX

Our major audit procedures to address the
management’s impairment assessment of
trade receivable included the following:
HMREEREEYE 5 RKFIANRET
MEEEZEFBEATEE:

o We reviewed the ageing of trade
receivables as at the financial year end
and discussed with the management of
the Company whether impairment should
be provided, especially for those that had
been past due.

s EHMEBFERZEHEBFIEGERE
BRwH BAFEREENWESERE

FAER - LERCBHMESERME-

° We analysed the impairment focusing
on any anomalies in the provisioning
methodology and followed up with
any anomalies, such as unusual
payment terms, through discussion with
management and review of customer
payment history.

s EEREEIETNEMAEE DR
B EREERBEETIRIERNER
NRE L RETSENTIERZRZENR
e
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Key audit matter

HEELER

Assessment of the recoverability of the trade receivables
B 5 W kI8 ol Bl 14 51

We identified the managements assessment of the recoverability
of the trade receivables as a key audit matter because significant
management judgement had to be made for the assessment,
including but not limited to assessing the credit quality of customers
and settlement history of customers.

HRTEESRKKENFTKOUEFTEEREELERHE (B
BRETERRIAEEFPZEEEZREPFELH)  AEME
Kazatfh@nlm— R EREE-

Disposal of a subsidiary
HE—FIHE 2 A

As disclosed in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements, on
30 December 2016, the Group disposed of the entire equity interest
in Shangdong Hengmao Umbrella Limited (“Shangdong Hengmao”)
to an independent third party (referred to as the “Purchaser”). In
return, the Group obtained a promissory note with principal value
of RMB34,800,000 issued by the Purchaser which was repayable
2 years with fair value amounting to RMB28,700,000 as at the date
of initial recognition. Shangdong Hengmao was engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of umbrellas.

WMiFE M WMARMAIBFAEE R_E—"F+_A=+H" &
SER—EBBYE=HF([EF)BELUREXEEZEFGRAA ([
REX)NE2PRE-ERER EEERFSEFBTZAS
#//3 AR %34,800,000T ER IS EE A K RIB LA L EER
MiarER B2 R FE B ARY28,700,0007T o (LB X Bt ER
ERIHERE -

18 M B BLAT R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEREEBEREREEHZARX

° We tested on large individual aged trade
receivables balances, discussed with
the management of the Company the
rationale for management’s impairment
decisions by reference to payment
patterns during the year as well as other
information available.

o AFEARSFRMEREIE D EBKIALELR
2EFRNNINATANAREMMAIEZE
K SRREERERwEIREELR
BERTE B KR

° We assessed the recoverability of trade
receivables with reference to the credit
quality, settlement history and aging
analysis of the debtor.

e Z2EBRBANGEEEZ BFEIERE
BT A B S e WRIB R AT R [E 1 -

Our major audit procedures to address the
risks included the following:

HPRERERRNEZEFERA TSR

o We obtained and reviewed the related
sales and purchases agreements and the
related legal documents to assess when
the date of disposal was;

o IS IWEBIAME E A RBERER
MU LARTH A E 2 BER

o We obtained the financial statements of
Shangdong Hengmao from 1 January
2016 to the date of disposal to assess
the results for consolidation purpose and
to assess the net asset value at the date
of disposal and hence to recalculate the
gain or loss on disposal.

e HBLREXRE_ZT—XREF—A—HBZ=
H & BEE B R AT RS ARRE
B2 EBRFEREE BN EEFE
TWHEmMEMFTELE B

o We discussed with management and
independent external valuer engaged by
the Company regarding the methodology
and assumption adopted to assess the
fair value of the promissory note at the
date of initial recognition; and

e HEBRER BRAMETREZBEING
il (B gt A7 4 A, R IR PO ¥ 08 T 2R B HA
BB P ER AN BN 708 S R AT TRt o
K
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Key audit matter

HEERER

Disposal of a subsidiary
HE—RBHE A A

The disposal had resulted in a loss on disposal of approximately
RMB5,506,000.
& FIED E 4 N EEENARS5506,0007

We had identified the disposal of a subsidiary as a key audit matter
because significant judgement was used by management to
determine the value of Shangdong Hengmao as at disposal date
and the consideration for the disposal. In addition, the consideration
received in the form of financial instrument require management
judgement to determine the its fair value as at the date of disposal.
HRERENETLREXNHERPZEEREEFRLIRE
RERBERAE ARHEMESLENBRRAEN B —HARE
BREE I R TARAKRREREEEED AL AZE
EEREEBBRZATE.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

QOur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE CHARGED
WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEISRKERAR AR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EMNEREEBERELREHEZANX

° We assessed the competency of the
independent external valuer taking
into account its experiences and
qualifications.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

18 M B BLAT R
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

56  CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Siu Edmund with Practising Certificate number
P0O5333.

Elite Partners CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

10/F, 8 Observatory Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

29 March 2017

18 M B BLAT R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEERkRAMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—-XE —E—FRF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARBTT
Revenue Wz 7 603,985 657,667
Cost of sales SHER AR (530,173) (510,464)
Gross profit EH 73,812 147,203
Other income and gains H AU A R W zS 7 8,232 10,665
Selling and distribution expenses HENDHEAY (12,971) (18,126)
Administrative expenses TR X (47,196) (81,349)
Provision for litigation SFAAR 24 (1,001) -
Finance costs B 75 A R 9 (7,362) (8,360)
Profit before taxation B 50 A& A 13,514 50,033
Income tax expense PRS BB < 10 (7,390) (24,804)
Profit for the year F AR 11 6,124 25,229
Other comprehensive (expenses)/income Ba&AJReEFH DB EBR Y
for the year that may be subsequently FREME®E (LX)
reclassified to profit or loss: s -
Exchange differences on translation of ~ #E G N EFEE FEIRE
financial statements of EEXCEHZER
foreign operation (301) 2,216
Total comprehensive income for the year A& U %5 4258 5,823 27,445
Profit for the year attributable to: TS IBEEFRRF
Owner of the Company VIN/NEIEZZS N 6,124 25,229
Total comprehensive income for the year WA N &HEERERNLE
attributable to: W s 4B 5E
Owner of the Company ZIN/NETEF =N 5,823 27,445
(Restated)
(e E?)
Earnings per share: BRAT :
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARAREE (ARE) 12 0.01cents?  0.03 cents 7
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
mEMBARR R

At 31 December 2016 R —ZE— R F+_-_A=+—H

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T ARET T

Non-current assets EMENEE
Property, plant and equipment R &5&% 15 108,842 109,375
Prepaid lease payments AT ERRE 16 36,339 44,766
Promissory note receivables O R E Hﬁl IR 17 28,708 -
173,889 154,141
Current assets MENEE
Inventories BB 18 180,076 106,951
Trade receivables 2 5 e RIE 19 105,679 51,250
Prepayments and other receivables SEANE: Iﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁf EWFRIE 20 81,885 39,834
Prepaid lease payments A E B 16 936 1,033
Tax recoverable Al U [E TS %R 2,249 -
Pledged deposits EEBER 21 31,274 23,805
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 21 137,304 260,382
539,403 483,255
Current liabilities mEAaE
Trade and bills payables B P EMR IE&JEHKF 22 100,552 64,475
Accrued expenses and other payables JEETERNMHEMEMNFIE 28 9,306 8,336
Income tax payable FERT TS HR - 3,294
Bank borrowings RITER 25 172,451 136,131
282,309 212,236
Net current assets mEEEFEE 257,094 271,019
Net assets BEEFE 430,983 425,160
Capital and reserves attributable to owner 72 G1HEH AL E R K&
of the Company G
Share capital % 7R 26 4,731 4,731
Reserves 1 27 426,252 420,429
Total equity T ARE 430,983 425,160

The consolidated financial statements on pages 58 to 123 were $58F123B e BHRCHET SR
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 —ZFE—+F=A -+ B #t AW EHE N

March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by: WHLATREZE
Huang Weniji Yang Guang
BEX&E Bk
Director Director
EF EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

Share
Share Share Translation option Merger Retained
capital premium reserve  Statutory reserve reserve reserve profits Total equity
BA RBEE EiRfE BRERE EVid 1] REEN BREE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ' RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT A TT ARETT AREFT

At1 January 2015 RZE-1%-A-H - - 50 27,193 - 81,621 131,476 240,240
Proft for the year FRER - - - - - - 25,229 25,229
Exchange diferences on translation of ~ #E S5 £
financial statements of foreign BBRREEL
operations X - - 2216 - - - - 2216
Total comprehensive income for the year afk ) - - 2216 - - - 25,29 27,445
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTATRE - - - 7,403 - - (7,409) -
Capitalisation issue g3 % 3,548 (3548) - - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares in comnection B E M ETERR
of listing 26 1,183 128,932 - - - - - 130,115
Share issue expenses - (8,644) - - - - - (8,644)
Recognition of equity-settled share
based payment 28 - - - - 36,004 - - 36,004
At 31 December 2015 and W=F-1%
1 January 2016 TZA=+-8R
4731 116,740 2266 345% 36,004 81521 149302 425,160
Proft for the year - - - - - - 6,124 6,124
Exchange differences on translation of ~ AE G5 &R
financial statements of foreign BBRREEL
operations EREE - - (301) - - - - (301)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2EMEEE - - (301) - - - 6,124 5823
Transfer to statutory reserve BRTEERE - - - 1907 - - (1,907) -
Lapse of share options BRERH 23 - - - - (36,004) - 36,004 -
At 31 December 2016 RIE-RE
+-ZA=t-H 4731 116,740 1,965 36,503 - 81,521 189,523 430,983
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

EoT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERITRER

RNE+ZA=+—HILFE

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES gL EE
Profit before taxation Bk £ A1 4 13,514 50,033
Adjustments for: FE
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments TE 7H & SR8 5 1,091 1,033
Finance costs B 7% A AN 7,362 8,360
Bank interest income RITH B HA (837) (1,221)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ ¥1%¥ = MR EITE 7,288 5,737
Government grants B 4 B (3,046) (2,541)
Impairment of inventories FERE 24,655 -
Imputed interest of promissory notes FHEBREER S ®) -
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FHBARZEE 5,506 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BELEREZ
equipment B8 27 28
Provision for litigation FEAEE 1,001 -
Equity-settled share based payment expense IHEREEU’RD A
B2 AR X - 36,004
Operating cash flows before movements LEESEER 2
in working capital LERRE 56,553 97,433
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE M TR (97,833) 1,268
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 EWEIEE (54,429) (7,552)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments TEAS SR8 & H b e W IR
and other receivables (#&m) R (42,373) 8,806
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables 2 5 BN RIE KL ELNEZE
g2,/ i) 36,077 (4,432)
Increase/(decrease) in accrued expenses FERTE A R E b B RIR
and other payables g, Crd) 197 (5,790)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations g R (BT ),/ T8R4 (101,808) 89,733
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid ERPEMREMRER (12,933) (28,219)
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED FROM GES (BB,
OPERATING ACTIVITIES PSR & %58 (114,741) 61,514
INVESTING ACTIVITIES KEEE
Acquisition of land use rights L s £ (5 R A - (7,684)
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment WEsmE BB REE (33,335) (28,3998)
Placement of pledged deposits GFHE BTN (7,469) (23,805)
Withdrawal of pledged deposits B EFRTR - 21,374
Bank interest income received BUER 1T F B4 A 837 1,221
Net cash outflow on disposal of subsidiary HERBARZ
W FE (107) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - KEREZHZ
plant and equipment FriS 38 34 16
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTVITIES 18 & 5B 4 %48 (40,040) (37,276)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GEHERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTT

FINANCING ACTIVITIES BB EB)

Repayments of bank borrowings EERITERK (216,434) (146,528)

New bank borrowings raised FriEIRITIE R 252,754 136,131

Interest paid ERFE (7,362) (8,360)

Government grants received B WBAT 47 B 3,046 2,541

Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares HEmmEfTEBRe

in connecting of listing FECE e - 130,115

Share issued expenses fE1n TR - (8,644)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM BLEREAGIRG 5

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 32,004 105,255
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND RekBAZFEBWORD)

CASH EQUIVALENTS #hnFER (122,777) 129,493
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE INEERSB) TR

RATE CHANGES (301) 2,163
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FYzRERRESEED

AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 260,382 128,726
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZ2BELRESEED

AT THE END OF THE YEAR,

represented by bank balances and cash BIRITHEHRERS 137,304 260,382
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

GENERAL INFORMATION OF THE GROUP AND
REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
June 2014 as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.

The address of the registered office is Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. The
address of the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong is Room 904, Loon Kee Building, 275 Des
Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong. The Company is engaged
in investment holding while the principal subsidiaries are
principally engaged in manufacture and sale of umbrellas.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong
dollars. The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) since most of the subsidiaries are operating
in RMB environment and the functional currency of most of the
subsidiaries is RMB.

APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

The Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant for the
preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements
for the first time in the current year:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements

2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16
and HKAS 38

Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and
Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28  Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interests in Joint Operations
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2. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs in the current
year has had no material impact on the Group’s financial
performance and positions for the current and prior year and/
or on the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs and amendments that have been issued but are not
yet effective.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’
HKFRS 15 and Revenue from Contracts with
amendments to Customers’
HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16 Leases?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment

Transactions'
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative*

Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised Losses*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2017
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

ANNUAL IMPROVEMENTS TO HKFRSs 2012-2014 CYCLE

The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle
include a number of amendments to various HKFRSs, which
are summarised below.

Firstly, the amendments to HKFRS 5 introduce specific
guidance for when an entity reclassifies an asset (or disposal
group) from held for sale to held for distribution to owners (or
vice versa). The amendments clarify that such a change should
be considered as a continuation of the original plan of disposal
and hence requirements set out in HKFRS 5 regarding the
change of sale plan do not apply.

Secondly, the amendments to HKFRS 7 provide additional
guidance to clarify whether a servicing contract is continuing
involvement in a transferred asset for the purpose of the
disclosures required in relation to transferred assets.

Thirdly, the amendments to HKAS 19 clarify that the rate
used to discount post-employment benefit obligations should
be determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds. The
assessment of the depth of a market for high quality corporate
bonds should be at the currency level (i.e. the same currency
as the benefits are to be paid). For currencies for which there
is no deep market in such high quality corporate bonds, the
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government
bonds denominated in that currency should be used instead.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of the
amendments included in the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2012-2014 Cycle will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 16 AND HKAS 38 CLARIFICATION
OF ACCEPTANCE METHODS OF DEPRECIATION AND
AMORTISATION

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit entities from using a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property, plant
and equipment. The amendments to HKAS 38 introduce a
rebuttable presumption that revenue-based amortisation is not
an appropriate basis for amortisation of an intangible asset.
The amendments states that such a presumption can only be
rebutted in the following two limited circumstances:

° when the intangible asset is expressed as a measure of
revenue; or

° when it can be demonstrated that revenue and
consumption of the economic benefits of the intangible
asset are highly correlated.

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2016 with early application permitted. The
amendments should be applied prospectively. As the Group
use straight-line method for the depreciation for its property,
plant and equipment, the directors of the Company believe
that the straight-line method is the most appropriate method
to reflect the consumption of economic benefits inherent in
the respective assets and accordingly. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of the amendments
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

HKFRS 9 has introduced new requirements for a) classification
and measurement of financial assets, b) impairment of financial
assets and ¢) general hedge accounting.

Specifically, with regard to the classification and measurement
of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires all recognised
financial assets that are within the scope of HKFRS 9 to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value.
Debt investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal outstanding are
generally measured at amortised cost at the end of each of
the subsequent accounting periods. Debt investments that
are held within a business model whose objective is achieved
both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial
assets, and that have contractual terms that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding, are generally measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI). All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Further, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity investment
(that is not held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which
HKFRS 3 applies) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss and that
cumulative fair value changes will not be reclassified to profit or
loss upon derecognition of the investment.

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS
9 requires that the amount of change in the fair value of a
financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit risk
of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of such changes in other comprehensive
income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a financial
liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit
or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value
through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

With regard to impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9
has adopted an expected credit loss model, as opposed to
an incurred credit loss model required under HKAS 39. In
general, the expected credit loss model requires an entity to
assess the change in credit risk of the financial asset since
initial recognition at each reporting date and to recognise the
expected credit loss depending on the degree of the change in
credit risk.

With regard to the general hedge accounting requirements,
HKFRS 9 retains the three types of hedge accounting
mechanisms currently available in HKAS 39. Under HKFRS
9, greater flexibility has been introduced to the types of
transactions eligible for hedge accounting, specifically
broadening the types of instruments that qualify for hedging
instruments and the types of risk components of non-financial
items that are eligible for hedge accounting. In addition, the
effectiveness test has been overhauled and replaced with
the principle of an ‘economic relationship’. Retrospective
assessment of hedge effectiveness is also no longer required.
Enhanced disclosure requirements about an entity’s risk
management activities have also been introduced.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on amounts
reported in respect of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities. However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes a
detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

In July 2014, HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in accounting for
revenue arising from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will
supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Specifically, the
standard introduces a 5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer.

° Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract.

° Step 3: Determine the transaction price.

o Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations in the contract.

o Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies a performance obligation.

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as)
a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of
the goods or services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more prescriptive
guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of HKFRS 15 in the future may have a material impact on
the amounts reported and disclosures made in the Group’s
consolidated financial statements. However, it is not practicable
to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15
until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

AMENDMENTS TO HKAS 7 DISCLOSURE INITIATIVE

The amendments require an entity to make disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities. The directors of
the Company do not anticipate that the application of these
amendments will have a material impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements also include applicable
disclosure required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on
the historical cost basis. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods
and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value
of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are
within the scope of HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of HKAS 17, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities controlled by the
Company (i.e. its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the
Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control listed
above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Company loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year/period are included in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the date
the Company gains control until the date when the Company
ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owner of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owner of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

CHANGES IN THE GROUP’S OWNERSHIP INTERESTS IN
EXISTING SUBSIDIARIES

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group’s interests and the
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes
in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
owners of the Company.

MERGER ACCOUNTING FOR BUSINESS COMBINATION
INVOLVING ENTITIES UNDER COMMON CONTROL

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements items of the combining entities or businesses
in which the common control combination occurs as if the
combination had occurred from the date when the combining
entities or businesses first came under the control of the
controlling party.

The net assets of the combining entities or businesses
are consolidated using the existing book values from the
controlling party’s perspective. No amount is recognised as
consideration for goodwill or excess of acquirer’s interest in
the net fair value of acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities over cost at the time of common control
combination, to the extent of the continuation of the controlling
party’s interest.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income includes the results of each of the
combining entities or businesses from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities or
businesses first came under the common control, where this is
a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common control
combination.

The comparative amounts in the consolidated financial
statements are presented as if the entities or businesses had
been consolidated at the end of the previous reporting period
unless the combining entities or businesses first came under
common control at a later date.

Equity interest in subsidiaries held by parties other than the
Controlling Shareholder, and changes therein, prior to the
reorganisation are presented as non-controlling interests in
equity applying the principles of merger accounting.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for any discounts
given, sales returns and sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and titles have passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

° the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

° the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes other than construction in progress
as described below are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses,
if any.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes are carried
at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs
capitalised in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets
other than construction in progress, less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to
arise from the continued use of asset. Any gain or loss arising
on the disposal or retirement of an item of plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds
and carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where
another systematic basis is more representative of the time
pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
LEASING (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the
Group assesses the classification of each element as a finance
or an operating lease separately based on the assessment as
to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the Group,
unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases
in which case the entire lease is classified as an operating
lease. Specifically, the minimum lease payments, including
any lump-sum upfront payments, are allocated between the
land and the building elements in proportion to the relative
fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and
building element of the lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between
the land and building elements, the entire lease is generally
classified as a finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At
the end of the reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. RMB) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year/period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
BORROWING COSTS

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are not recognised until there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to them and that the grants will be received.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they become receivable.

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before taxation’ as
reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because of income or expense
that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax
is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred
tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investment in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on the tax rate (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where
current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting
for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
RETIREMENT BENEFITS COSTS AND TERMINATION BENEFITS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling them
to the contributions.

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees in
respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted
amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for
that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

SHARE OPTIONS GRANTED TO CONSULTANTS

Share options issued in exchange for services are measured
at the fair values of the services received, unless that fair value
cannot be reliably measured, in which case the goods or
services received are measured by reference to the fair value
of the share options granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share option reserve), when
the Group obtains the goods or when the counterparties render
services, unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as
assets.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Financial assets are mainly loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade receivables, other receivables,
pledged deposits, bank balances and cash) and promissory
note receivables are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of
interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at
the end of the reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash
flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could
include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty;
or

° breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in
interest and principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset
because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade
receivables and other receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, assessed for impairment
on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit period of
30 to 150 days, as well as observable changes in national
or local economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
assets’ carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial assets’ original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of trade receivables and other receivables,
where the carrying amounts are reduced through the use of
allowance accounts. Changes in the carrying amount of the
allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable or other receivable is considered uncollectible,
it is written off against the respective allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss decreases
and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by group entities are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of financial liabilities and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group entities are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses and other payables and bank borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premium or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest expense is
recognised on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the asset
to the extent of its continuing involvement and recognises an
associated liability. If the Group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative
gain or loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
expire. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash in the consolidated statement of
financial position comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with a maturity of three months or less.
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash
as defined above.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Where
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generation units, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuea)
IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON TANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
as income immediately in profit or loss.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Company if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person
(i) has control or joint control of the Company;
(i) has significant influence over the Company; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Company or of a parent of the Company; or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Company are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(i) the entity and the Company are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
RELATED PARTIES (continued)
(o)  (continued)

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Company or an
entity related to the Company;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(viiy a person identified in (a)() has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(vii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity and include:

(@) that person’s children and spouse or domestic partner;

(o)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependants of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continuea)

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE ENTITY’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

Impairment assessment of the trade receivables

The policy for impairment assessment on trade receivables
of the Group is based on the evaluation of recoverability
and outstanding period of accounts and on management’s
judgement. A considerable amount of judgement is required in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables, including
the current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. In determining whether impairment loss should
be recorded in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the directors of the Company
make judgements as to whether there is any observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from individual trade receivables. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives, after taking
into account their estimated residual values. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual residual
value and useful lives of property, plant and equipment of
similar nature and functions. The Group assesses annually
the residual value and the useful life of the property, plant
and equipment and if the expectation differs from the original
estimate, such a difference may impact the depreciation for the
year and the estimate will be changed in the future period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continued)

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (continueq)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of the property, plant
and equipment when there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. The impairment loss for
property, plant and equipment are recognised for the amounts
by which the carrying amounts exceed their recoverable
amounts, in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy.
The recoverable amounts of property, plant and equipment
have been determined based on value-in-use calculations.
These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates such as future revenue and discount rates.

Estimated allowance for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an ageing analysis
at the end of each reporting period and makes allowance
for obsolete and slow-moving items identified that are no
longer suitable for sale or use. The Group makes allowance
for inventories based on the assessment of the net realisable
value. The management estimates the net realisable value for
inventories based primarily on the latest invoice prices and
current market conditions.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy
remains unchanged from last year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes bank borrowings, net of bank balances and cash,
and equity attributable to the owner of the Company, which
comprises issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors of the Company
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on the recommendations of the
directors of the Company, the Group will balance its overall
capital structure through the payment of dividends, issuance
of new shares as well as the issue of new debts or the
redemption of borrowings.
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TRTH

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 6.

(A)

CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets SREE

(A)

SRMITEZER

2016 2015
—E—XE

—E—hF
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR®TR

Promissory note receivables A R N ERIR 28,708 -
Loans and receivables (including bank ERREBGIE (B
balances and cash) RITEHREIES) 274,809 336,067
Financial liabilities tEaE
Amortised cost RN 281,040 208,064
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND B) HM¥EREEBEERBE

POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include
promissory note receivables, trade receivables, other
receivables, pledged deposits, bank balances and cash,
trade and bills payables, accrued expenses, and other
payables and bank borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

AEEZETESRT EBREANL
REEWHIR B 5 R WHE H
fio YIRS ER - RITH
#BhBET BIRNREBEMENE
%~ FERT B N EL A FE S SRR R
TER-UEEBRTAZFRER
MEREM FEPRE - L E SR T AR
Mz Rk eRmmzEER (E%E
R A EE ) - EERRRRE
B2 mE - i AR R % 5 AR 2 B
REFIMT - EREE IR MBI
E R - HEORERS A A T8

s 4t e
= 18 It °©

Market risk 5B R
Currency risk B b

The Group has foreign currency sales and purchases
denominated in United States dollars (“USD”), Japanese
Yen (“JPY”) and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD”), which are
different from the functional currencies of the group
entities carrying out the transactions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)

Also, certain trade receivables, pledged deposits, bank
balances and cash, trade and bills payables, accrued
expenses and bank borrowings are denominated in
USD, JPY and HKD which are currencies other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities. The
carrying amounts of the foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Group at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

mE IS AR Y

E-E—AF+-AST—HILER

6. ETMIA (&)

(B)

BEEREEZEERBE (£)

TEmE (&)

Emg (&)

o BT B S EKHRIE  ©HER
R RTEHRERS BIEN
FOARENRE - Bt E A RIRTT
BT AE T AT KB Tata
X BT MBETLIFAEEERE
B - AKERFEHR
MONERTECEREERER R
BZREENT:

Assets Liabilities
BE =K

2016 2015 2016 2015

—B-R"F ZT-HF =FT-A"F T IF

’000 '000 ‘000

Fr T T

Uusb FETT 81,720 42,023 14,387 (28,474)
JPY HJt 47,519 6,674 11 -
HKD BT 4,650 10,222 - (818)

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the directors of the Company
continuously monitor the related foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. EWMIHE#E)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) HXEKREEEERBEK (£)
POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued) TEEE (&)
Currency risk (continued) B (&)
Sensitivity analysis BREE DT

The Group is mainly exposed to currency risk of USD,
JPY and HKD.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity to a
5% for all periods increase or decrease in USD, JPY
and HKD against the functional currency. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end
of each reporting period for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates an
increase in post-tax profit where USD, JPY and HKD
strengthen 5% against the functional currency. For a 5%
weakens of USD, JPY and HKD against the functional
currency, there would be an equal or opposite impact on
the profit and other equity and the balances below would
be negative.

AEBTXEmMBEXT BTRET
Z B -

TREINAEHEARRERE X
BT REBTADEEETE
S EE% 2B REEF B 5% )5
MEIEERABRNFZHIMNER
SRAZBREL R WRRERE
BHINEERSIBAI e &) 2 a7
fly - BURE DT E B IRIAINEFHE
ZRAXNEBEE AR FHRE
HA R Bt NS B R5% 2 B B i B (B
BT ZEHRRRET BT
BRI E B THES B - FR TR
gEME MK BT RBITH
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Impact on profit for the year ended HERBINZ2HE 2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARET T

UsbD ETT 1,647 508
JPY = 1,782 250
HKD BT 145 353
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued)
Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The Group’s currency risk is mainly attributable to
the exposure on trade receivables, pledged deposits,
bank balances and cash, trade and bills payables,
accrued expenses and bank borrowings denominated
in USD, JPY and HKD at the end of the reporting period
respectively.

Interest rate risk

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates primarily
to fixed rate pledged deposit and fixed rate bank
borrowings (see notes 21 and 25 for details respectively).
The Group currently does not have an interest rate
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider other necessary
action when significant interest rate exposure is
anticipated.

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily
to variable-rate bank balances (see note 21 for details of
these balances). The exposure to the interest rate risk for
variable rate bank balances is insignificant as the bank
balances have a short maturity period.

Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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6.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly
reduced.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 38% (2015:
21%) of the total trade receivables at 31 December 2016
was due from the Group’s largest customer.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 88% (2015:
69%) of the total trade receivables at 31 December 2016
was due from the Group’s top five customers.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by geographical
locations is mainly in Japan, which accounted for 38%
(2015: 60%) of the total trade receivables as at 31
December 2016.
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Az & SEWRIEETEF E38%
ZE—FF:69%)K B AREE
AARFE HWAEEHEEYZE
BE bk -

AEBZEERRIZOEMNE
EnEBEFRAR ER_F
—RNE+-_A=+-—BZzEB5E
WRIBEEE 7 38% (- B — 4
60% ) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(B)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk

In management of liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in

cash flows. Management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities based on the agreed repayment terms. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest
date on which the Group can be required to pay. The
table includes both interest and principal cash flows.

mE IS AR Y

E-E—AF+-AST—HILER

6. ETMIA (&)

(B)

BHEAREEERRBR (#)

REBRDESER AEBEER
kEmHAehReSEYNEE
EEREABNASEZEZK
FoORBERERERDZITE-E
EEERRTERZHRERL

R A BRI -

TERREZTEEMRFAIASE
BETEESREBBEZHRTEOE
BB - AR IR B AR EAN R
ZEFEHRERBEZIRTR
ReRnEMER ZREENBR
AEREME

As at 31 December 2016
R-ZB—XRF+=-A=+—H

Total
On demand or undiscounted Carrying
within 1 year cash flows amount
RERD RIFRBES
MER TEHAE BREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT AR®ET R AR® TR
Trade and bills payables 5’ IR
RENER 100,552 100,552 100,552
Accrued expenses and FEErERARHEA
other payables JET IR 8,037 8,037 8,037
Bank borrowings RITER 180,697 180,697 172,451
289,286 289,286 281,040
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. £@®MIH#)
(B) FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND (B) MEEBREEEERBEE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) HEELEE ()

As at 31 December 2015
R_E—HAFE+_H=+—H
Total
On demand or undiscounted Carrying

within 1 year cash flows amount
RERK AFTHRRE
R1ER = A EE AREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARBT T

Trade and bills payables E ZENFIE

RENZER 64,475 64,475 64,475
Accrued expenses and FEETEBRA K EM
other payables J& < 3R IE 7,458 7,458 7,458
Bank borrowings IRITRER 140,886 140,886 136,131
212,819 212,819 208,064
(C) FAIR VALUE () A¥E&E
The directors of the Company consider that the carrying RAREERE BREHLEEVB
amounts of current financial assets and current financial 3R P DAE B R SR R B 8 K AR
liabilities recorded at amortised cost using the effective AERZRBDeMEERTE B
interest rate method in the consolidated financial BEKE AR ARRE AR
statements approximate to their fair values due to their EEEEANFERS -

immediate or short-term maturities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(€)

FAIR VALUE (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair value.

mE IS AR Y

E-E-RF+-_A=+—HIFE

6. ETMIA (&)

(€)

DNFE(E)

SN SR F B R S - A FEE
ERANFERFEZBARE
ZABREEBABRBHE QT
B EZEESRFE 8=
Ao BT

. —RBABEBEAERIR
m+§ ARGBHEEEESE
HRBTSEHZHE CR

)

\U]]H =

&

nE

OF]

s E_RBWAREERE &
reEmz®EN EESLA
BEUEERSARERFIZ
WABE &

s FEZRBWARENEELA
BETABREZHARE-

REAMBIRRKR 2O AEE
imﬂé?&imﬂﬁ%ﬂ@ﬁ%@ﬁéﬁi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable
for goods sold and service provided in the normal course of
business, net of discounts, sales returns and sales related
taxes. Analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as

Wz e EL At A K Wi 2%

WastE R —REBBRETR L EE M
RURSG 2 WIS (DI
- HERMMHEMRMBKIE) - FAN
KB WSz AT

follows:
2016 2015
—EB—RE —ZE—h4E
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR T T
Revenue &

Sale of goods $HE B 603,985 657,667

Other income and gains Hi g A & s
Bank interest income RITH B U A 837 1,221
Government grants (note) BT AEBY (BFEE) 3,046 2,541
Exchange gain, net & 5 U255 58 4,341 6,903
Imputed interest on promissory notes EHEEEER S 8 -
8,232 10,665

Note: During the year, government grants of approximately
RMB3,046,000 (2015: RMB2,541,000) were received, where
the Group had fulfilled the relevant criteria, in respect of certain
research projects and export encouragement scheme. The
amounts were therefore immediately recognised as other
income.

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is engaged in a single operating segment, the
manufacture and sales of umbrellas. Operating segment is
reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting
provided to the chief operating decision maker (the “CODM”).
The CODM is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the board of directors as they collectively make
strategic decision in allocating the Group’s resources and
assessing performance. No segment assets, liabilities and
other segment information in the measure of Group’s segment
result and segment assets are presented as the information
is not reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
PRODUCT INFORMATION

The Group has been engaged in manufacturing and sales of
POE umbrella, nylon umbrella and umbrella parts. An analysis
of the Group’s revenue by product category is as follows:

DEER ()
ERER
REEMAFRERHEPOERE B8

ES
MR RRRET M - AEREIRE REAR
SlozWEmDHAT

2015
—E—XE —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T ARET T

POE umbrella POE f £ 335,828 399,712
Nylon umbrella JEEER & 201,052 188,465
Umbrella parts MR T4 67,105 69,490
603,985 657,667

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC, accordingly,
no geographical information about the Group’s assets and
liabilities has been presented. The Group’s customers are
mainly located in Japan and the PRC. An analysis of the
Group’s revenue from external customers presented by
geographical location is detailed below:

i EE R

AEEZEEUNTE At TEL7)
ERAASEEERBENBRER X
SEZEPTEMNAARRFTE- 1Zi
BUEHAKREKBINGES 2 Wtk
HZ DM

Revenue from external customers REIMBESE 2 W= 2016 2015
—B—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETx ARET T

Japan SN 329,392 331,150

PRC s 180,343 204,247

Other =i} 94,250 122,270

603,985 657,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 8. HMER (&)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS EBFXEEFZER
Details of the customers individually representing 10% or more ERME AR EBUWZE10% HIA FZEE 2
of the Group’s revenue are as follows: FiEMT

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTIT

Customer A ZEA 151,138 120,102
Customer B =ZFEB 114,858 89,675
Customer C BFC 91,306 N/A T8 R

*

The corresponding revenue does not contribute over 10% of the * HEREYERERFEARNERE
total revenue of the Group in the respective year. BRABUZS 210% LA ko

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BMBEA

2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBTT

Interest expenses on: THEBE R ERE
— bank borrowings wholly repayable —ERAFRNEHEEZ
within five years RITIEN 7,362 8,360
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 &

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Current income tax
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

BIEAFR SRR

— B ERER

mE IS AR Y

E-E—AF+-AST—HILER

10. FIBRiRxX

2016
—F—RF

2015
—T—hF
RMB'000
ARBETT

RMB’000
AR®T R

7,390 24,804

i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and BVI, the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been
made for subsidiary established in Hong Kong as this
subsidiary did not have any assessable profits subject
to Hong Kong profits tax during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax
(the “EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT
Law, the tax rate of the PRC companies is 25% for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

i)

REHENEREBELNEY
SRBI TR AR A58 B BB E ]
HEHRBRABELHS Y i
B

BE-T-AER-FT-n%
ToAST-BILEE MRRE
I ST 2 B 28 S 48 £ 1
TS B2 I RBORT - 8L
45 9% 3% BB 28 ) 21 SR 6
Ao

RIEFBESEMREHE (TREM
BEE]D) R EEREREE K
- PERRBE-_T—RFR
E-—hF+A=+T—HLEE
Z R 525% °

FAMSHAXRGEREREBEE
Yo ah & BRI B & A SRR AN T

2016 2015
—E—XRE —ET—FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFIT
Profit before taxation B %5t Al 13,514 50,033

Tax at domestic income tax rate of 25%  IZB A {3 EK25% 55 >
g 3,379 12,508

Tax effect of expense not deductible TAMBR BB E

for tax purposes 4,011 12,296
Income tax expense for the year FAMSRAS 7,390 24,804
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11. FAEF

Profit for the year has been arrived
at after charging:

Salaries and allowances

F s M AR FORR T 51 & IRIR

.8 .
(S

el (FTERESME)

2016
—2—RF

2015
—E—hF
RMB’000
AREFIT

RMB’000
ARBT R

(excluding directors’ emoluments) 73,592 71,048
Retirement benefit scheme contributions  iE K48 F 51 2] 2%

(excluding directors) (TBREESE) 14,350 14,549
Total staff costs BIXAER 87,942 85,597
Cost of inventories recognised WRARI ZTFERA

as an expense (Note a) (FfzEa) 530,173 510,464
Loss on disposal of property, LEWE- - BEME&E BB

plant and equipment 27 28
Depreciation of property, Y- BERREITE

plant and equipment 7,288 5,737
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T8/~ 2 & 5k 18 & 4 1,091 1,033
Research and development expenses e (liEb)

(Note b) 10,864 7,381
Listing expenses +mEA - 8,549
Equity-settled share-based payment NS EEARMN BER 2

expense N#AX - 36,004
Auditor’s remuneration Z SR BN & 560 488

Note: B3 -

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the cost (@ REEZZE—XR"F+-_A=+—81
of goods sold was approximately RMB24,655,000 (2015: Nil) FE HAREERNAZRETE
related to the provision of obsolete inventories. BEH R ARM24,655,000L (=ZF

—hEE) o
()  During the year ended 31 December 2016, included in the b)) REEZZ—X"F+_A=+—HLt

research and development expenses was approximately
RMB1,750,000 (2015: RMB1,717,000) related to staff cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the
purpose of basic earnings per share for years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015 respectively were adjusted for the
share subdivision on 26 April 2016.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the computation of
diluted earnings per share for the year did not assume the
exercise of outstanding share options of the Company since
the exercise price of the share options was higher than the
average market price during the 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the diluted earnings
per share was the same as the basic earnings per share
as there were no other potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding.

Earnings ZF|
Earnings for the purpose of basic and

diluted earnings per share & & &7

12.

BREF
RAORERE TR FR-_ZT—1
FH+_A=T - BLFEEZERER
BNz T BBRMEFHE BN -F
—RNEFEOAZFRBETZRDFAT
IATHEE o

HE_Z—AF+_A=1tRHILEE"
TEZFE 2SR ERN T EEBE
RNEMATEZBREETE RAB
BREZTEEER _E—AF2FY
e

HE-Z—R"F+-_A=1+—HLEFE"
MR A EE Y &t A EEE ) 2 %17
EINE R SREEANERNERE
KRB -

2016
—E—RE

2015
—E—FhF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR®T

ETEBREAREER T

6,124 25,229

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares for the purpose of calculating
basic and diluted earnings per share

2015
—ET—hF
000

T A%
(RES EE)]
(& &E5)

Fhat H AR E AN N E & R
& A& B OIS 15 2

75,000,000 75,000,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 13. EX THEAZREEMS
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS
(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S A ESERITHAZRHMS
EMOLUMENTS
Details of emoluments paid and payable to the directors FHNRAAEEES (BRETHER
of the Group, which include the Chief Executive Officer ([f7as]) ) B RN 2 B
(“CEQ”) for the year are as follows: SFBEAT:

Year ended 31 December 2016
BE-2-—ARE+TZA=T-HALEE
Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme

Fees allowances contributions Total
Hek RER

ik Hf2es ST @t

RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T AR¥T R ARETR

Executive directors: HITES:
Huang Weniji (CEQ) BEXE
(7TB %) - 960 3 963
Chen Jieyou B B () - 385 2 387
Yang Guang Bk - 180 3 183
Lin Zhenshuang WEE - 189 3 192
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth 821 (i) 156 - - 156
Independent BUFRTES:
non-executive directors:
Chan Shiu Kwong, BB
Stephen (iif 80 - - 80
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie i (iv) 125 - - 125
Yang Xuetai BEA (v) 61 - - 61
Tso Sze Wai gt (vi) 36 - - 36
458 1,714 1 2,183
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

13. EE THRAREEMSE (&)

(A ESRTHRARZNE (&)

Year ended 31 December 2015
F-F-BFT-AS+—ALLER

Salaries Retirement
and other  benefit scheme
Fees allowances contributions Total
sek RIKEA
e H {28k STEIHEH @ar
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
fitzE ARETTT ARETT AREFTL AREBTT
Executive directors: HITEE:
Huang Wenii (CEQ) 'K
(T7B4%) - 961 3 964
Chen Jieyou BHRE () - 421 3 424
Yang Guang Bk - 181 3 184
Lin Zhenshuang mEE - 169 3 172
Chung Kin Hung, Kenneth {21 (i 110 - - 110
Independent BIAIERT
non-executive directors: EE
Chan Shiu Kwong, BREA
Stephen (il 41 - - 4
Lee Kit Ying, Winnie TR (iv) 28 - - 28
Yang Xuetai BEX ) 56 - - 56
Yau Lai Ying i) (vil) 32 - - 32
Tse Ka Wing FIEES (vii 32 - - 32
299 1,732 12 2,043

No directors or CEO waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
paid by the Group during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015. No emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or CEO as an incentive payment to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office during the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

HE_T—R"FE=FT—HF+=A
T+ —HULEFE BEESFEHTHES
BEXRAERERAEEL N 2 A E -
HE_Z—R"EFE_FT—RF+=H
=+ —HIEFE AEBEWES N HH
FEMESHITRAE EAFEZMA
REBERMARE B G 2 52F) - s iE

RBER 2 e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE — &

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(A)

Notes:

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

(viil)

Resigned on 2 December 2016.

Designated as Executive Director on 13 April 2015.

Designated as an independent non-executive director on
6 August 2015 and resigned on 7 October 2016.

Designated as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 21 August 2015.

Designated as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 23 January 2015.

Designated as an independent non-executive director of
the Company on 7 October 2016.

Designated as the independent non-executive director of
the Company on 23 January 2015 and retired on 28 May
2015.

Designated as the independent non-executive director of
the Company on 23 January 2015 and retired on 28 May
2015.

Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind paid to or for the
executive directors are generally emoluments paid or receivable
in respect of those persons’ other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

13. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(B) EMPLOYEE’S EMOLUMENT

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four were directors of the Company including the
CEO of the Company whose emoluments are included in
the disclosures in Note 13 (A) above. The emolument of
the remaining one individual was as follows:

13. EX THABREEME (&)

(%)
(B) EEM=

AEBREESHFALH OER
RRAREF (BEARAITHAE
) HE© B &R EXXIEE13(A)
ZERERN-BRT—BALTZBEW
T

2016 2015

—EB—RE —ZE—hFE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARETIT

Salaries and other allowances e hHaEE, 675 626
Retirement benefit scheme contributions #2478 F 51 21 £ 7% 15 15
690 641

The emolument was within the following bands:

e RIATEE :

HKD1,000,000 or below

During the year ended 31 December 2016, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors, CEO or the five highest paid individuals as
inducements to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office.

14. DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: Nil).

1,000,000 7T A T 1 1

BHE_FT—R"F+H=1+—8H
IFFEE AEBYEDNRENE
F THREAHS AR TMHAL
s EARSEMARERLMA
REE B2 RESKIEAREREE -

14. RE

EETEIARBEE_T—RF+_-A
=S+t RAEFEZREEE(ZF—8
FE) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y% BERRERE
Machinery
and Motor Office  Construction
Buildings equipment vehicles equipment in progress Total
BF HERRE AE BAERE HEEE @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AR®TT ARETR
COST B%:
At 1 January 2015 R-E-RF—H—H 79,007 28,534 3,098 4,511 13,268 128,418
Additions NE 18,004 1,908 - 18 8,468 28,398
Transfer B 20,917 - - - (20,917) -
Disposals HE - - (149) - - (149)
At 31 December 2015 and R-Z-R%E+_-A
1 January 2016 =t+—-8k
—T-~"¥—-H—H 117,928 30,442 2,949 4,529 819 156,667
Additions B 22,555 69 2,685 209 7817 33,335
Transfer B 7,698 - - - (7,698) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FRHBAR (25,702) (716) - (154) (938) (27,510)
Disposals HE - - (284) - - (284)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"%F 122,479 29,795 5,350 4,584 - 162,208
T-A=+-H
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ZitHE
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—RF—H—H 20,375 16,002 1,470 3,813 - 41,660
Provided for the year FRBE 2,953 2,417 272 95 - 5,737
Eliminated on disposals & B - - (105) - - (105)
At 31 December 2015 and RZZ—RE+=A
1 January 2016 =t+t—-Hk
—T-R"¥—R—H 23,328 18,419 1,637 3,908 - 47,292
Provided for the year FREE 4,520 2,406 281 81 - 7,288
Eliminated on disposals T B - - (224) - - (224)
Eliminated on disposal of REE—FHEAE
a subsidiary 0 5 85 (895) (76) - (19) - (990)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—R"%F
+-A=+—H 26,953 20,749 1,694 3,970 - 53,366
CARRYING AMOUNTS REE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"%F
+-A=+—H 95,526 9,046 3,656 614 - 108,842
At 31 December 2015 RZZT—h%E
+-A=+-H 94,600 12,023 1,312 621 819 109,375

CHINA JICHENG HOLDINGS LIMITED
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15.

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

i) The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following rates
per annum:

10% - 25%

10% — 33%

10% - 20%

Over the shorter of term of
the lease or 2.5%

Machinery and equipment
Motor vehicles

Office equipment
Buildings

ii) As at 31 December 2016, the Group has obtained the
building ownership certificates for buildings with carrying
values of approximately RMB95,526,000.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not obtained
the building ownership certificate for buildings with
carrying value of approximately RMB18,004,000 from the
relevant PRC government authorities.

i) As at 31 December 2016, buildings with carrying
amounts of approximately RMB68,548,000 (2015:
RMB72,017,000) have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Prepaid lease payments comprises of leasehold land held
in the PRC under medium-term lease and are analysed for
reporting purposes as follows:

Prepaid lease payments comprises of
leasehold land held in the PRC under
medium-term lease and are

15.

16.

Y- MERRE 7

)  EdME BEARBEERASR
EATHIERGFERE:

10% —25%

10% —33%

10% —20%

M K2.5%
AR E R

iy MZE—XR"F+_A=+—8"
AEBERSERENAARE
95,526,000L 2 EF 2 EEME

A

T o

W_E—AF+=A=+—8 &
5K & 1R B TR BEUS
BRE{E#X) A R#18,004,0007T 2 1
F 2 BEAAHEE:

iy RZE-—ARF+ZA=+—80'K
B 4 5 A R #68,548,0007T (=
T—HF: AR¥72,017,0007T)
ZEFEERERREBERRE
TRE 2R

FNHERE
BNEERBERERFEREPHEE
BAEZHEETH WHMEB T
T

2016 2015

—E—RE —TE—hF

RMB’000
ARBTT

RMB’000
AR®T R

BENHEEREBRERF
RETHHEEREZ
HET I RS B &

analysed for reporting purposes as follows: AT
Non-current asset FERBEE 36,339 44,766
Current asset MEBE E 936 1,033
37,275 45,799
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

16.

17.

18.

19.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS (continued) 16. FE{SHERE (&)
As at 31 December 2016, leasehold land with carrying RZE—RE+_A=+—H KEE
amounts of approximately RMB32,262,000 (2015: 4B ANREE32,262,0007T (ZE—HF:
RMB33,961,000) have been pledged to secure banking AR #33,961,0007T ) 2 H & T # B 3K
facilities granted to the Group. HIERREEERRITHE ZER.
As at 31 December 2015, the Group has not obtained the RZE—RAF+_A=+—H X%£E
land use right certificate for lands with carrying values of IR B AR B BT RS EREELD
approximately RMB7,684,000 from relevant PRC government A R #7,684,0007T 1+ #b #y + Hb {F A 4
authorities. BE
PROMISSORY NOTE RECEIVABLES 17. AL EBERWIE
During the year ended 31 December 2016, refer to the note HEZ—R"FT+A=T—HLEFE"
33 to the consolidated financial statements, the Group has AR A BTSSR R M FEQ3AT il - AEE B
disposed of the entire equity interest of L I1B/% A AR HEIREXEZEGR AR DR -
/A &) which was satisfied by a promissory note issued by the LAE 7T EITHAEH RBERN -
purchaser.
The principal amount of the promissory note was A EE MR % A A R 34,800,000
RMB34,800,000 and the fair value of the promissory note at T A ZER VB REREN AFEEY
initial recognition was approximately RMB28,700,000. The A AN R #28,700,0007T - B H B A& B8 &
maturity date is 2 years from the issue date of promissory note. HEBRZHITAHB2F AN ERIRE
The promising note was measured at amortised cost with an HKAGT & BEMNER1013% - KN
effective interest rate of 10.13%. As at 31 December 2016, E-RF+_A=Z+—H EELEED
the carrying amount of the promissory note was approximately IREE Y & AR ®28,708,0007T
RMB28,708,000.
INVENTORIES 18. &
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTT
Raw materials JRA 127,986 50,189
Work-in-progress TR M 19,090 19,433
Finished goods BIRK on 33,000 37,329
180,076 106,951
TRADE RECEIVABLES 19. ESEWFIE

Trade receivables 5 EWGE

2016
—B-A%E

2015
—E—hF
RMB’000
ARET T

RMB’000
AR®TR

105,679 51,250
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19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea)

The Group generally allows a credit period of 30 — 150 days
to its trade customers. The Group does not hold any collateral
over these balances.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period, which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates.

19.

B 5% BWRIR (4)

AEEREBESEFPREZEEH R
/B0E150H » AN E W pl % F A #5
FAETAERm-

THARHRERR (RAREKEERR
M) mEEAHE20 28 H R KR
TR BRI DT

2016 2015

—EB—RE —ZE—h%E

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

0 to 90 days 0£90H 79,978 51,250
91 to 180 days 91%180H 25,701 -
105,679 51,250

The Group has individually assessed all receivables. No
impairment losses were recognised during the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.

At 31 December 2016, the aged analysis of trade receivables
that was past due (i.e. over the credit period) but not impaired
are as follows:

HBiBEE S
12290H

Over the credit period
1 to 90 days

AEECD @R EEHRERE-BHE
—EAFERZFE-AFTZRA=1—
AIESE BERRRERE-

R-_ZE—XRFE+-_A=+—H 2@
(BB BEER) BRRESE S ERGIE
ZERE DT

2016

2015
—ZE—hF

RMB’000
AR®T R

RMB’000
NS

25,701 -

In determining the recoverability of trade receivables, the Group
considers any change in credit quality of the trade receivables
from the date credit was initially granted up to the reporting
date. In view of the good settlement history from those
receivables of the Group which are past due but not impaired,
the directors of the Company consider that no provision for
impairment is necessary in respect of these balances.

BT E 5 RWFRIA 2 A Y Bl 1 - A
SEeEZEAVIRIEEZEHES
BERMRLEIRWFAZEREEER
ZEME - ERAEEZFCBHE
RAREZEBYGREBESELERL
BARREERREFINZFEBREL
B -

ANNUAL REPORT 2016
20164 F 3§

109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

19. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continuea) 19. EZEWNKIE (4#)

The Group’s trade receivables that are denominated in
currency other than the functional currency of the relevant
Group entities are as follows:

74 8 U AR I B ST
2B SEURENT

UsD ETT 8,923 6,190
JPY Bt 682,405 123,884
20. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20, EANFREREMERR

2016 2015
=E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AREET T
Other receivables H e U IR 552 591
Value-added tax receivables JrE Uk 12 (B AR 24,492 6,447
Prepayments FAfRIE 56,841 32,796
81,885 39,834
The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. REBUESZSESRFER TR
21. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH 2. EEHEFERRBITEHKERS
The bank balances and cash comprise of cash held by the RITERLIASBEREAEERFE 2R

Group. The bank balances for the year ended 31 December
2016 carried interest at the prevailing market rate 0.30% (2015:
0.36%) per annum. The pledged deposits carried fixed interest
rate of 1.30% (2015: 3.25%) per annum during the year ended

T BE_ZT—RNET_A=Z+—HI
FE - RITHEBIRBITMSER RO, 30%
(ZZE—HF:036%)itB-FH=E—

fﬁ¢+*ﬂ:+f5¢@? Emﬂ

31 December 2016. 17 RR & TE F F%1.30% —hF:
3.25% )EF B e
The Group's pledged deposits and bank balances and RZE—AR"F+_A=+—H0 *5£E

cash denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
RMB164,525,000 (2015: RMB275,623,000) as at 31
December 2016. Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies
is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations

NARBEBEZEEBERRBITES
NIR& 458 AR #164,525,0007T (==
—HF: AR#275,623,000T) - AR
¥ H B RINE AT R CHNEE IR D)D)

and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of AR (EETE - EERNEEIEBTE) FT
Foreign Exchange Regulations. BEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

21. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21.

(continued)

The Group'’s pledged deposits, short-term bank deposits and
bank balances and cash that are denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the relevant Group entities
are as follows:

EEAERRBRITERERRS

(%)

AEBARESEERIFVNEEETE
ZEERER EHRTHERRRITE
PRRIREIAT

UsD ETT
JPY Hit
HKD BT

35 328
115,015 -
4,650 10,222

22. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2. BEENRERENRE

2016 2015

—B-AF —E-RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE TR ARETIT

Trade payables S EMNFIE 15,485 5,517
Bills payables BT RE 85,067 58,958
100,552 64,475

An aged analysis of trade and bills payables presented based
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is as

RBEMRRBEZAM2II2EHEN
RIARENRERESITIAT :

follows:
2016 2015
—B-AF —E-RF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARET T
0 to 90 days 0£90H 71,252 33,167
91 to 180 days 91£180H 28,342 31,308
181 to 365 days 181£365H 958 -
100,552 64,475

The credit period on purchase of goods ranged from 30 days
to 120 days. The Group has financial risk management policies
or plans for its payables with respect to the credit timeframe.

BEERZEEHNFI0RE1208 -
NEBBEENZIE ZEEHRHEH
BEBEERENRTE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

23.

24,

ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER PAYABLES

23.

FEsTE AR EMmENKE

2016 2015

—EB—RE —T—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR T T

Receipt in advance (Note a) AN (Fista) 1,269 878
Other payables (Note b) H MR FRIE (H5Eb) 3,493 1,358
Payable for construction in progress ERIRREMNUE - 94
Accrued expenses JEETF X 4,544 6,006
9,306 8,336

Notes:

(@) Receipt in advance represented advance payments relating
to sale of goods received from customers pursuant to the
respective sales contracts.

(b) Other payables includes approximately RMB1,001,000 for
provision for litigation, the detail as set out note 24.

PROVISION FOR LITIGATION

Mr. Yao Da San (“Mr.Yao”) filed a claim through Fujian Province
Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s Court against to an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, Jinjiang Jicheng
Industry Co., Ltd. (“Jinjiang Jicheng”) for the outstanding
subcontracting fee of approximately RMB1,038,928
(“Litigation”).

On 13 March 2017, with the effort of Fujian Province
Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s Court, both parties agreed
to reconcile on Litigation. Jinjiang Jicheng agreed to make
one-off payment with an amount approximately RMB950,000
to Mr.Yao as damage with condition that Mr.Yao will not pursue
further actions regarding the Litigation for remaining balances.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, provisions on
the damage and professional fee in relation to the litigation
was sufficient based on the best estimates and advice from
the external legal counsel. The provision for litigation with
amount approximately RMB1,001,000 was made during the
year ended 31 December 2016, including the compensation
of approximately RMB950,000, mediation cost of Fujian
Province Zhangzhou Zhangpu People’s court of approximately
RMB26,000 and legal professional fee of approximately
RMB25,000.
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24,

it :

@ FBRFEREEHHFEESORZTPK
Rz AHMEEaEmZAKKRIEA -

(b) HUENZEBEFLABEBOARE
1,001,0007T * B B B H A M 24,

R

hEZAE(REE)BEBERESE
MITERFAREIRAAEBEBEL2E
MEAR S IEKETERAR ([&
TERDBRANOBERNARE
1,038,9287T ([#F#2 1) °

KA EMNmERHRARER B
EFE_ZT—+F=AT=AEXNE
Whag - BIIEKEBRMEE —RMEX
B FRE L AR ¥950,0007T © MER
iRt ok e £ KRR LRI SR SRR AR
— AR AARIRER] -

ARAREZRE BE&EZ G R
BEMz7ER BHEFAZEEZEEER
HEBABFERT - REZ-_T—X
F+ A=+ BIFEHRRRESE
# AR #1,001,00070 EF B IEEES
# AR ¥950,0007T ~ FBEA EIMNTEH
B ARER B4 A R #26,0007T &
EREEERLN AREK25,0007T



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AU REN

For the year ended 31 December 2016 H E —Z

—RE+ZA=+—HBLEFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS R 1T A=K
2016 2015
ZE-XRE —T—hfF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARET T
Secured, repayable within one year BT AR B REHRE
from the end of the reporting period —FREE 172,451 136,131

Notes: B 5 -

i) As at 31 December 2016, all bank borrowings carried fixed i) RZE—AR"F+ZA=+—H0 2
rates of interest from 4.57% to 5.98% per annum (2015: 5.61% RITEFIEN T4.57% £5.98% (=&
to 7.2% per annum) and were due within 1 year. —HF 561%E7.2%) 2 FEEFI=E

FFENR—FREE-

) The Group’s bank borrowings at the end of each reporting i) ANEERSHRERRZBITE KA
period were secured by the followings: TEIFHEF
a) As at 31 December 2016, all bank borrowings were a) RZE—RE+ZA=+—H"

secured by the Group’s follow assets: E2HRITERBARAEEUNTE
ERER:
2016 2015
—XE —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Leasehold land and building HELHHREF 100,810 105,978
Bank deposits RITIF R 31,274 23,805
Total s 132,084 129,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. B
The balances as at 1 January 2015 represented the aggregate RIE—RE-A—HZE&ERERESE
share capital of Fujian Jicheng Umbrella Co., Ltd. ({8i2% REEBER AT EETIMEXNETHR
Bk A2 2 B BR A 7)) and Jinjiang Jicheng Light Industry Co., AT ANEFE MR -_E—HFE+=
Ltd. (B IMEKE THRAA), and the balances as at B=+—AR-—E— X< E+-A=+—

31 December 2015 and 31 December 2016 represented the
share capital of the Company.

B2 EBRIEA R R Z A -

Nominal value of ordinary shares
EERZEE

Number of shares
R E

HK$'000
FET

RMB'000
ARETT

SEERA :
R-ZZE—h&—HA—8"

Authorised:
On 1 January 2015, ordinary

shares of HK$0.01 each FREBCOEITZE®K 30,000,000 300
Increase in authorised share capital, EERALE N Tk

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each E{E0.0OVE L2 Eidik

(Note ) (Bisri) 970,000,000 9,700
Effect of share subdivision to & 10 47 40 = B A% I {E0.0004

HK$0.0004 each (Note iii) BT P2 (M) 24,000,000,000 -

At 31 December 2015, ordinary

R-ZE—HF

shares of HK$0.0004 each +-A=+—H0 8k
E{50.00047% T2 @R 25,000,000,000 10,000
Effect of share subdivision to W% 15 47 48 = &A% 1 /£0.00008
HK$0.00008 each (Note iv) Bz g2 (MEiv) 100,000,000,000 -
At 31 December 2016, ordinary RZZ—RF+ZA=+—0"
shares of HK$0.00008 each SR EE0.000087 T2
Tim 125,000,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRBREA:
On 1 January 2015 RN—E—HF—H—H 1,000 - -
Issue of shares upon capitalisation RERNLKEITRG
(Note i) (HEED) 449,999,000 4,500 3,548
Issue of ordinary shares FamETEmk
in connection with the listing (FEEi)
(Note ii 150,000,000 1,500 1,183
Effect of share subdivision (Note iii B4z 2 (MizEii)  14,400,000,000 -
R-ZE—HF
As at 31 December 2015 +ZA=+—H 15,000,000,000 6,000 4,731
Effect of share subdivision (Note iv) Wmiraz 2 (fstv)  60,000,000,000 - -
RZZT—RF
As at 31 December 2016 +-A=1— 75,000,000,000 6,000 4,731
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

A (45)
GES

26. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 26.

Notes:

(i)

(i

(i)

(iv)

On 28 January 2015, the authorised share capital of the
Company was increased from HK$300,000 to HK$10,000,000
by the creation of an additional 970,000,000 shares of which the
rights are identical to that of the existing shares. 449,999,000
shares were issued by way of capitalisation on the proceeds
from the issue of 150,000,000 shares as stated in share capital
as detailed in the Prospectus.

The Group’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange and
150,000,000 new shares with a nominal value of HK$0.01 each
were issued to the investors by way of international placing
and Hong Kong public offering at HK$1.1 each. Immediately
following completion of listing on 13 February 2015, the
authorised share capital of the Company was HK$10,000,000
divided into 1,000,000,000 shares and the issued share capital
of the Company was HK$6,000,000 divided into 600,000,000
shares with 400,000,000 shares remaining unissued.

Pursuant to the ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 9 June 2015, a share subdivision was
approved with effect from 10 June 2015 in which every one (1)
share issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.01 each in
the share capital of the Company was subdivided into twenty
five (25) subdivided shares having a par value of HK$0.0004 per
subdivided share (“Share Subdivision”). Immediately after the
Share Subdivision, the authorised share capital of the Company
of HK$10,000,000 was divided into 25,000,000,000 subdivided
shares, of which 15,000,000,000 subdivided shares were issued
and fully paid. Details of the Share Subdivision are disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 22 May 2015.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders
of the Company at the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company held on 25 April 2016, a share subdivision was
approved with effect from 26 April 2016 in which every one (1)
share issued and unissued ordinary share of HK$0.0004 each
in the share capital of the Company was subdivided into five
(5) subdivided shares having a par value of HK$0.00008 per
subdivided share (“Share Subdivision”). Immediately after the
Share Subdivision, the number of the authorised share capital
of the Company was divided into 125,000,000,000 subdivided
shares, of which 75,000,000,000 subdivided shares were issued
and fully paid. Details of the Share Subdivision are disclosed in
the circular of the Company dated 8 April 2016.

All shares issued during the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015 rank pari passu with existing shares in all respects.

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

RZE—HFE—A_-_+=H AR7
R BEANNEBEERMD ZEFER
2 %8 4N970,000,0000% f% 17 #5 % & Bk
7K F1300,0007% 7T # 210,000,000
JC ° 449,999,000% f&% 19 T3 LA & A (b
BOTHEBRERANMFABRANY 2
150,000,0000% f% 17 BT 15 5k 18 2 75 =X 3¢
7o

AEBZROREBRIHE Em M
150,000,0008% & i% M {60.0178 70 2 %1
BODBIABBREEREBEAHEE Y
FREFRIABTAREERT B
R —_E—RAF_A+=B%KL™
1% NN 8] 2 VA TE IR 7K 210,000,000/
7T * 9 /31,000,000,0000% A% 17 + A Kz 7
A7 B 17 IR A 56,000,000 T
/600,000,0000% % 15 * 400,000,000
B RRAD 18 A BT o

BEBEARBDBRER-_ZE—RFE AN
ARITZARABREFIAS LiBB
ZEBRER RORAELE A=
TE-FAENATAREAR B K
NRE AR E— (1) B EE.OIBIITZ
EETRARBTEBRIFEA=-TH
(25) A% & A% [ 150.0004 3 JT 2 47 41 %
? (TR IFE]) - B MDIFME -
AN A A 2 5K E B AN10,000,00058 T 5
/£525,000,000,0000% #F 48 f% {1 - & &
15,000,000,0000% 7 41 I 1 48 © 2% 17
MR- B ITEZFBR
AATRAMAE—RERA-+=
H2ZBHANEE-

BEARABRER-_ZT—XFMNA
T+ARBRTZAQBABRERER KX
CrBEBZEBERER BROFME
HE B-FT—A"FNA-F+B#
AR ARRBRARE— (1)K
M{E0.0004B T2 B BT RETE
BRI 4 A R (5) IR &A% E {80.00008
Bz ARG (TR IFM]) - &
BERR DR ME A AR ZRERAD
#125,000,000,0000% #7 48 i% 15 + £
75,000,000,0008% % 41 A% 17 4% © 3 17
MR- B ITEZFBR
ARABHHA-ZZ—XR"FNANBZ
BN

REBEEZ_FT—X"FERZT—HAF+=ZA
=+—HUEFEZHBEEHTRMNRES A
IR E R 2 R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

217.

RESERVES
STATUTORY RESERVE

The statutory reserve fund is non-distributable and the transfer
to this reserve is determined by the board of directors in
accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.
This reserve can be used to offset accumulated losses and
increase capital upon approval from the relevant government
authorities.

MERGER RESERVE

As at 1 January 2013, merger reserve represented the
difference between share capital of the new holding Company
and the aggregate of the share capital of the then holding
company of the Group and the companies comprising the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2014, Fujian Jicheng
acquired 17.96% of equity interests in Jinjiang Jicheng from
a related entity at total consideration of RMB3,700,000.
The amount of RMB2,590,000 was paid to the Controlling
Shareholder and the amount of RMB1,110,000 was paid to
the non-controlling shareholders. As a result, the acquisition
was considered as acquisition of 5.388% of indirect equity
interest in Jinjiang Jicheng from non-controlling shareholders
and acquisition of 12.572% indirect equity interests in Jinjiang
Jicheng from the Controlling Shareholder for business
combination under common control. For business under
common control purpose, the 12.572% indirect equity interests
in Jinjiang Jicheng held by the Controlling Shareholder had
been consolidated from the earliest date presented when
Jinjiang Jicheng first came under the common control of the
Controlling Shareholder before the acquisition.

As part of the Reorganisation, Jicheng HK agreed to acquire
100% and 82.04% of then resulting the registered capital of
Fujian Jicheng and Jinjiang Jicheng respectively and gained
control of them. RMB80,396,000 was recognised in merger
reserve representing the reserve arising pursuant to the
Reorganisation.
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HE-FT—NE+-_A=+—H01
FE BEERKNBEEBWREST
EX17.96% 2Bl BREABARE
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28.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION

On 18 June 2015, 60,000,000 share options were granted
to the Company’s consultants at a consideration of HK$1
per each grantee under the Company’s share option scheme
(no share options were granted during the year ended 31
December 2014). Each option gives the holder the right to
subscribe for one ordinary share of the Company. These
share options are exercisable since the date of grant and the
exercise period will expire within one year from the date of
acceptance (i.e. 18 June 2015). The exercise price is HK$1.57.
No options were exercised during year (2014 Nil).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2015 had an
exercise price HK$1.57 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.5 years.

The fair value per share option granted during the year 2015
estimated at the date of grant using The Black-Scholes pricing
model was HK$0.761. The assumptions used are as follows:

Fair value at measurement date HK$0.761
Share price HK$1.57
Exercise price HK$1.57
Expected volatility 184%
Option life 1 year
Dividend yield 0%
Risk-free interest rate 0.02%

The expected volatility was based on statistical analysis of
daily share average prices of group of listed companies in
the similar industry over the one year immediately preceding
the grant date, adjusted for any expected changes to future
volatility based on publicly available information. Dividend vyield
was estimated based on the dividend policy of the Group.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate. There were no market conditions
associated with the share option grants.

28.

DREZEEURDABER RS

R-ZZE-—RAFXNATNR ARARE
HEREFIZREREARABITZA
{B ) HL B 4% 1160,000,00017 BB A #E (172
HE_T—NF+-_A=+—HILFE
BEROBRE) -SOBRER T
BARNRABARA —REBB -%F
BhRESRL AHER TIT6E M7
HEREEMEHR (BT —RF A
TAR)B—FREM - 1TEEBR1.578
TLo A WEBREETE(ZF N
FE) o

R-E-—RAF+-A=1+—HEAKTE
ZBEIRAR ZTEE /.57 T RN
BT AHFH RS-

RIZE-—RAFRHEZEOHBEREZ AT
BRI L B 83 A Black-Scholes it B
BRI A0.76178 7T - FTR A 2 B
T

REBZAFE 07618 T
(& 1.57%8 7T
I E 1,578
TE R 0@ 184%

B A% 1 4F B 14

A% B 2 =& 0%

7R ) = 0.02%

BEHNEENHERRE AR —FR
—HBEOTE LT AR BEREZSRE
D BAFER BRI R 2 TR &
BELABR - REREXERNAEER
ERRHEE - TB2HEBRZEATRE
SHRAFEZEEEEATE -HRHA
1 P S AR 0 R R o

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 {17

20164 F 3§



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE AR M R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

28. EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTION 28. UEBZFEUROAERZRS
(continued) (#)
The equity-settled share-based payments charged to the profit HE-_ZT—AF+-A=+T—HLFE"
or loss was RMB36,004,000 for the year ended 31 December BiEm TDHZMTZE” mEE AR BER
2015. 2R A R #36,004,0007T ©
During the year ended 31 December 2016, no share option REEZE-ZZT—RETA=T—HIEF
was exercised, and upon the expiry of exercise period, all [§ @ W BT B AR 1T - 51T {5 BF
outstanding share options granted under the Share Option EmE FTEEREERESZRTERE
Scheme had been lapsed accordingly. B ARITE B B A i B AR PR R R o

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENT 29, BEAREE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end REREER  NEEHUTEREE:

of each reporting period:

2016 2015
—~E —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTT

Capital expenditure contracted for but not

provided in the consolidated financial BLTY|IEB ERTAE

statements in respect of: RN E B |mENR

Acquisition of property, plant and BB ERRR

equipment W B & - 756
30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30. EEALRS

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL TEEEASHE
Other than the remuneration paid to the directors and RO 1AM MR R A KB X EE
employees of the Group as set out in note 13, who are BABZASEESREEXNZEME
considered as the key management personnel of the Group, S AEEYERNTEEEABXNE
the Group did not have any other significant compensations to Al E fh KA (E -

key management personnel.

The remuneration of the directors and key management EERTEERBABZHEHAARARE
personnel is determined by the board of directors of the EFERLERFEARBRETSBARET -

Company having regards to the performance of individuals and
market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mE IS AR Y

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE 31. KRR ZHBAARR T
COMPANY
2016 2015
—E—XRE

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETx ARETIT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RTBRRIZIEE 260,704 244,169

Current assets MEEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR B8 B H A E YR 1,219 1,043
Amount due from subsidiaries =N E 125,523 118,949
Bank balance and cash R17 ,\\uﬁ%&fﬁi 144 96
126,886 120,088
Current liabilities mEAEE

Accrued expenses and other payables JEET B R & E A RIB 1,143 818
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEF B B A &) 08 14,487 11,612
15,630 12,430
Net current assets MEEEFE 111,256 107,658
Net assets EESE 371,960 351,827

Capital and reserves BEARRFEE
Share capital 1% 4,731 4,731
Reserves {1 367,229 347,096
Total equity BT 371,960 351,827

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 29 March

2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

Huang Weniji
BEXE
Director

EBEF

ARBMBERARNREHETEN —Z
—tEF=ZA -+ N BHELRE
HATRERESE

Yang Guang
Bk
Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION FOR THE 3. KRB 2B RRE (&)
COMPANY (continued)
MOVEMENT IN COMPANY’S RESERVES ANFREEEE

Translation ~ Share option Accumulated
Share capital ~ Share premium reserve reserve  Merger reserve losses Total
RA& B3 EE Eiiffs BRERE AHHRE 2 ER Eh

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETRL  ARMTT AREKTRT AR¥TR ARETR L

At 1 January 2015 W-%-1%-A-H - - 26 - 229,897 (8,169) 221,754
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (48,367) (48,367)
Exchange differences on translation of HENBREEZIIEBELL

financial statement to presentation curency ~ EREE - - 20,965 - - - 20,965
Capitalisation issue BRET 3548 (3,548) - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares in connection EamETEAR

with the listing 1,183 128,932 - - - - 130,115
Share issued expenses BUEGLB - (8,644) - - - - (8,644)
Recognition of equity-settles share based BRANEREENRNARRZ

payments 3 - - - 36,004 - - 36,004

At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-ZF-RE+-F=+-HAR

“ET-R"E-A-H 4,731 116,740 20,991 36,004 229,897 (66,536) 351,827
Lapsed of share options BRER N - - - (36,004) - 36,004 -
Loss for the year FAFBE - - - - (3,571) (3571)
Exchange different on tranglation of REGBRRERIERELL
financial statement to presentation currency R =% - - 23,704 - - - 23,704
4,731 116,740 44,695 - 229,897 (24,103 371,960
Note: Merger reserve represents the difference between the nominal Mizk: atEERERKBEENRB AT BT
value of the shares issued for acquisition of its subsidiaries and B Mn 2 EEEE B A e RIS B 5
the net asset value of its subsidiaries at the date of acquisition. CEEFBEZERE-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HE T — XF+ A =Z+—HIFE

32. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY 32. ARAIMBARIZHE
The details of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2016 are set RZE—XRFE+-_A=+—"H WEBA
out as follows: Al Z A BEYINT

Place and date of Issued and fully paid share Percentage of equity interest/voting

Name of subsidiaries incorporation/establishment

capital/registered capital
BETRAR
B/ R

power attributable to the Company  Principal activities

B3 8 K B 5

AAFEERE REREAL
Direct
B

TEER
Indirect

ik

Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited  British Virgins Islands Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
(“Jicheng BVI") 13 June 2014 UsD1
Jicheng Umbrella Holding Limited ~ RER & & LRk 100% - REER
([Jicheng BVI |) —E-MERATZHE  AER
Jicheng Umbrella Hong Kong Hong Kong Ordinary shares - 100% Investment holding
Company Limited (“Jicheng HK”) 30 June 2014 HKD1
ERAEFERRAA Bk LBk - 100%  BEER
(T&MEE]) ZT-mERA=TH 1B
Zenith Century Limited British Virgins Islands Ordinary shares 100% - Dormant
13 February 2015 USD100
Zenith Century Limited EEREIES Lak 100% - HEEE
—RFZA+=H 100Exn
Fujian Jicheng The PRC Paid-in capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(REERREBRDA) 24 December 2004 HKD180,000,000 sales of umbrella
(Notes (i) and (ii)
REEK (HE026) e EHER - 100% HERHERSR
—TEME 180,000,000 7T
TZRZ+mH
Jinjiang Jicheng The PRC Paid-in capital - 100%  Manufacturing and
(BIEKEIRERAR) 13 May 1996 RMB20,595,500 sales of umbrella
(Notes (i) and (ii)
BITERK (0 2 a0) e EHER - 100% HERHERSR
—“AMNAERAT=A  AR20,595,50070

KMFREERMEFR GEMER
FIBITEMNEBSE

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during
both years and at the end of both years.

e LM B AR EENKRES M
BXAL/ PRI B A

All of the above subsidiaries operate principally in their
respective place of incorporation/establishment.

Notes: B 5

0] The entity is wholly foreign owned enterprise established in the 0] ZEBANFPEMKL 2 INERERSE-
PRC.

(i) The English translation of the company names is for reference i) REEBEHEXEAEHRS2Z -ZE

REWMERBE AT XEH -

only. The official names of these companies are in Chinese.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 HZEZ - T — XF+-_A=+—HIFE

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY 33. HEAXRA—EHELQF

On 30 December 2016, the Group disposed of the entire RZE—ARF+A=1+H X~&EEMRA
equity interest in IURBXZEEHFBR A A (“Shandong —EZBBUE=F([EFHELERE
Hengmao”) to an independent third party (the “Purchaser”). EREZEABRAA ([WEREX]) B2
The Group in return obtained a promissory note with the - tEpBlEH AEEIEE 5T
aggregate principal amount of RMB34,800,000 which 2R e @5 R AR ¥34,800,0007T fE
were receivable 2 years from 30 December 2016 issued by REZZE—RFT_A=1THEMF
the Purchaser. The fair value of the promissory note was WE AR B - RIEB L INEFEE
determined at approximately RMB28,700,000 at the date of BEET 2B IBE RLEERD
initial recognition, based on an independent valuation carried BERAACAFTEEERNART
out by an independent external professional valuer. 28,700,0007T °

The assets and liabilities of the Shandong Hengmao as at the WEREXNHEBRNEERAGBNT

date of disposal were as follows:

2016
—E-KF
RMB’'000
AREET T
Property, plant and equipment Y B KR 26,520
Prepaid leases payment A HEEIE 7,433
Other receivables and prepayments H A fE U FRIE R FE A 5RIR 322
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREFEY 107
Inventories FE 52
Accrual expenses and other payables FEET B A & H At I 5B (228)
Net assets disposed of BEHEEEFE 34,206
Consideration of disposal REZRE
Promissory note A RE 28,700
Loss on disposal of subsidiary* HEMBRRINEE" (5,506)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BERRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EE T —"F+_A=+—HLFE

33. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY OF THE COMPANY 33. HEAQAR—BHWEBAR (&)
(continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of disposal is as EBELENRERENTBOT :
follows:

2016

RMB’000
ARBTT

Cash and cash equivalents disposed BHERERAEEEY 107

Net cash outflow of cash and

cash equivalents RekReFEYNRE ML FE 107
* For illustration purpose only should the results on the disposal of * EHRFARE WESLREK 2
Shangong Hengmao calculate based on the principal amount of RIOBEEAZBRBZRASBARE
the promissory note of RMB34,800,000, the Group will record 34,800,000 05 & - BIAREE #5815 H
a gain on disposal of Shangdong Hengmao of approximately EIREX W=D A RES594,000
RMB594,000. JCe
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B8R

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilites of our LA FE I ANEBR A MBS BEEHELEUN
Group for the five financial years, as extracted from the published BENEBEMHME  NHEFACHERNLERZ
audited financial statements, is set out below. B 5k -

For the year ended 31 December
BE+-A=t—-BHLHFE
2016 2015 2014 2012

“E-XE —T—AHF —E—NF = —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TE ARBTT ARBTT AREBTT ARETT

Results ¥
Revenue Yz 603,985 657,667 602,516 483,615 377,367
Gross Profit E7 73,812 147,203 161,043 119,392 93,697
Profit before taxation BB B A 13,514 50,033 102,498 80,012 58,682
Profit for the year F 17 5 F 6,124 25,229 74,159 59,755 44,149
Profit for the year attributable to:  JA T~ & B FE (L
g A -
Owner of the Company RARER A 6,124 25,229 73,168 57,631 43,135
Non-controlling interests FEIERR R A - - 991 2,124 1,014

At 31 December
R+=A=+-—H
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012

“E-XE —T—AHF —E—NF T—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT

Assets and liabilities EERERE

Non-current assets FERBEE 173,889 154,141 125,014 115,673 121,552
Current assets nREEE 539,403 483,255 351,445 385,928 404,014
Current liabilities VeI 282,309 212,236 236,219 279,439 313,159
Net current assets TBEEFE 257,094 271,019 115,226 106,489 90,855
Net assets EEFE 430,983 425,160 240,240 222,162 212,407
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